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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Telephone (852) 2809 7888
Facsimile @ (852) 3568 4426

E-mail . irb17@coscoshipping.com

Website : hk.coscoshipping.com
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

2025 Annual General Meeting:
30 May 2025

Announcement of 2025 Interim Results:
27 August 2025

Announcement of 2025 Annual Results:
2026*

*  to be advised

DIVIDEND

2025 Interim Dividend:
33 HK cents per share

Closure of Register of Members:
11 to 16 September 2025

Payment Date for 2025 Interim Dividend:
25 September 2025

2025 FHHARE


hk.coscoshipping.com
hk.coscoshipping.com

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

THBWRER S

During the first half of 2025, profit attributable to equity holders
of COSCO SHIPPING International (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
(“COSCO SHIPPING International” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) was HK$487,223,000 (2024:
HK$388,041,000), increased by 26% year-on-year, while the basic
and diluted earnings per share was 33.24 HK cents (2024: 26.47
HK cents), increased by 26% year-on-year. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in revenue of shipping services business and the
share of profit of a joint venture, Jotun COSCO Marine Coatings (HK)
Limited (“Jotun COSCQO”), and the increase in net exchange gains.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s revenue was
HK$1,934,118,000 (2024: HK$1,752,887,000), increased by 10%
year-on-year. Revenue from the core business of shipping services
was HK$1,928,259,000 (2024: HK$1,667,279,000), increased
by 16% year-on-year, and accounted for 99.7% (2024: 95%) of
the Group’s revenue, mainly due to the increase in revenues from
coatings and ship trading agency segments. Revenue from general
trading segment was HK$5,859,000 (2024: HK$85,608,000),
decreased by 93% year-on-year, and accounted for 0.3% (2024: 5%)
of the Group’s revenue.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s gross profit
was HK$498,803,000 (2024: HK$401,628,000), increased by 24%
year-on-year, mainly due to the increase in gross profit of coatings
segment and the increase in revenue from ship trading agency
segment. The overall gross profit margin was 26% (2024: 23%),
increased by 3 percentage point year-on-year, mainly due to the
increase in revenue contribution from higher-gross profit margin
segments.

2025 INTERIM REPORT 5



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHBIWE S

EEEWE

HE2025F6 A30BIEAEA  KEAR
APERGE (BB BERAR(EETE
BE ) REKE QA (EAEE K Piracus
Port Authority S A. B E RSN B B B 75
EEREEIRHEERSNEE SRS
/42,277,000 7T (2024 £ : 36,256,000 78
TL) R EF17% EEHREEEHE
BERELAMBATEEANITERE —&K
B ANFTEL -

HibWm R AE — FaR

HZE2025F6 A30R LN A - Hblk
= X FI18 — F%58 563,560,000 7T (2024
% : 13,627,000 7T) * At £ F366% -
FERRE & U FEEIE TR -

HE - 1THE—REH

B E2025F6 A0 IEAEA » $H5E - 17
B & — M E R A&354,277,0007% JT (2024
F : 315,625,000/8 L) ' B EFA12%
TEARNHEER EERMNEAKEH
THEEBERIG AT -

KERA

N B /& &% R A250,363,000 % I
(2024 % : 135,886,000 7T) * [@ tr £ FF
84% » T EHRWA R EFIEAMFTE -

B 5 W s

BBlaE (EZRAEERBITHERDF
B #E) B112,872,000% 7T (2024 4 :
140,095,000 7C) * At T#19% + £ &
AR RFIE TR -

6 casEmmE®aRAT

Management Fee Income

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, management fee income
arising from the provision of management services by the Company
in relation to the day-to-day business operations and management of
COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (“COSCO SHIPPING
(Hong Kong)”) and its subsidiaries (other than those relating to the
Group and Piraeus Port Authority S.A.) was HK$42,277,000 (2024:
HK$36,256,000), increased by 17% year-on-year, mainly due to the
increase in administrative and general expenses related to COSCO
SHIPPING (Hong Kong) and its subsidiaries mentioned above.

Other Income and Gains — Net

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, other income and gains —
net was HK$63,560,000 (2024: HK$13,627,000), increased by 366%
year-on-year, mainly due to the increase in net exchange gains.

Selling, Administrative and General Expenses

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, selling, administrative and
general expenses was HK$354,277,000 (2024: HK$315,625,000),
increased by 12% year-on-year, mainly due to the increase in selling
expenses, employee benefit expenses and expenses related to
short-term leases.

Operating Profit

The Group’s operating profit was HK$250,363,000 (2024:
HK$135,886,000), increased by 84% year-on-year, mainly due to the
increase in revenue and gross profit.

Finance Income

Finance income, which primarily represented interest income
on the Group’s bank deposits, was HK$112,872,000 (2024
HK$140,095,000), decreased by 19% year-on-year, mainly due to
the decrease in interest rates of deposits.

2025 FHHARE



B 75 AN

BERA(EEAEECaEANEERARE
1t BF 75 2 84) A& 726,000 7T (2024 4F -
1,155,000 7T) * AL T#37% ©

LB EREER

REBEEEE D EMNRNA178,709,000
7T (2024 4F 1 149,636,00078 7T) ° %A B
FEBERMGPRAZAEF 171,319,000
7 7T (2024 4F : 141,466,000 7T) JA M &
HEAMZEMMRBEERAR (AR
& 1) #9 % %15,612,00078 7T (2024 4F :
5,837,000 7T) - BEASBEET AZRE S
A -

iR N b

& B FE G B & D R R % ) 48,616,000
77T (20244 : 11,083,000/ 7T) ° %18 B
FEBREMMNINAGBEFR AR (7
T P 5248 2 |) #93% 76,144,000 7% 7T (2024
& :7,402,00087TC) - B BEFTA—
BESHENA -

RRREREFE ARIERF

RARHERTEFA AEE & T A 487,223,000
7 7T (2024 £ : 388,041,000 7T) © Rtk
EHN26% °

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THREARR S

Finance Costs

Finance costs, which primarily represented interest expenses on
lease liabilities and other finance charges, was HK$726,000 (2024
HK$1,155,000), decreased by 37% year-on-year.

Share of Profits of Joint Ventures

The Group’s share of profits of joint ventures was HK$178,709,000
(2024: HK$149,636,000). This item primarily represented the
share of profits of Jotun COSCO of HK$171,319,000 (2024:
HK$141,466,000) and & 74 i 2= 4£ ¥ M1 £ &L 508 [R 2 7] (Nasurfar
Biomaterial Technology (Changshu) Co., Ltd.*) (“Nasurfar Changshu”)
of HK$5,612,000 (2024: HK$5,837,000), which were included in the
coatings segment.

Share of Profits of Associates

The Group’s share of profits of associates was HK$8,616,000
(2024: HK$11,083,000). This item primarily represented the share
of profit of #7)T I Jt. 4 2 B BR 2 7] (Zhejiang Four Brothers Rope
Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhejiang Four Brothers Rope”) of HK$6,144,000 (2024:
HK$7,402,000), which was included in the general trading segment.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
HK$487,223,000 (2024: HK$388,041,000), increased by 26% year-
on-year.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2025, capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders increased by 3% to HK$8,130,506,000
(as at 31 December 2024: HK$7,872,586,000). As at 30 June
2025, total cash and deposits (including restricted bank deposits
of HK$5,483,000) of the Group was HK$6,091,510,000 (as at 31
December 2024: HK$5,943,477,000, including restricted bank
deposits of HK$5,399,000). During the period and the same period
of 2024, the Group had no drawdown or repayment of short-term
borrowings. As at 30 June 2025, total trading related facilities of the
Group amounted to HK$499,921,000 (as at 31 December 2024
HK$492,701,000), of which HK$20,976,000 (as at 31 December
2024: HK$22,672,000) had been utilised. As at 30 June 2025 and
31 December 2024, the gearing ratio, which represented total
borrowings over total assets, was nil. As at 30 June 2025, the Group
had net cash (represented by total non-current bank deposits
restricted bank deposits and current deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) of HK$6,091,510,000 (as at 31 December 2024:
HK$5,943,477,000). To enhance the Group’s finance income and to
ensure availability of cash at appropriate times to meet the Group’s
commitments and needs, the Group, on the basis of balancing risk,
return and liquidity, invested in a mixture of stable and conservative
financial products, including overnight deposits, term deposits and
offshore fixed deposits. During the period, return on the Group’s cash
was 3.75% (for the same period of 2024: 4.58%). The Group had no
financial instruments for interest rate hedging purposes.

2025 FHHARE
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COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRBIWE S

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group principally operates in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and overseas, and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from foreign currencies held, mainly Renminbi
and U.S. dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities. The Group
manages its foreign exchange exposure by regularly reviewing the
foreign currency exposure of its operating subsidiaries and will
consider hedging exposure by foreign exchange forward contracts
when the need arises. The Group exercises stringent control over the
use of derivative financial instruments. In addition, the conversion of
Renminbi into foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange controls promulgated by the
government of the PRC.

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2025, excluding joint ventures and associates, the
Group had 797 (as at 31 December 2024: 809) employees, of whom
201 (as at 31 December 2024: 201) were Hong Kong employees.
During the period, total employee benefit expenses, including
directors’ emoluments and provident funds, were HK$253,458,000
(for the same period of 2024: HK$231,390,000). Employees were
remunerated on the basis of their performance and experience.
Remuneration packages include salary and a year-end discretionary
bonus, which are determined with reference to market conditions and
individual performance. During the period, all Hong Kong employees
participated in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme or recognised
occupational retirement schemes.

The share option incentive scheme of the Company was adopted by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) at the special
general meeting of the Company on 9 April 2020 (the “Share Option
Incentive Scheme”).

The Company granted an aggregate of 23,830,000 share options to
certain directors of the Company and certain employees of the Group
to subscribe for a total of 23,830,000 shares of the Company (the
“Share(s)”) at a price of HK$2.26 per share on 28 April 2020 under
the Share Option Incentive Scheme. Subject to the fulfilment of the
relevant conditions, these share options granted are exercisable from
28 April 2022 to 27 April 2026 in batches.

2025 INTERIM REPORT 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Company granted an aggregate of 2,460,000 share options to
certain employees of the Group to subscribe for a total of 2,460,000
shares of the Company at a price of HK$2.184 per share on 6
October 2020 under the Share Option Incentive Scheme. Subject to
the fulfillment of the relevant conditions, these share options granted
are exercisable from 6 October 2022 to 5 October 2026 in batches.

The Company granted an aggregate of 1,370,000 share options to
certain employees of the Group to subscribe for a total of 1,370,000
shares of the Company at a price of HK$2.72 per share on 7 April
2021 under the Share Option Incentive Scheme. Subject to the
fulfillment of the relevant conditions, these share options granted are
exercisable from 7 April 2023 to 6 April 2027 in batches.

Each batch of the above share options is exercisable within the
periods stated as follows: (a) 33.3% of the share options will be
exercisable commencing on the first trading day after the expiration
of the 24-month period (the second anniversary) from the respective
dates of grant and ending on the last trading day of the 36-month
period from the respective dates of grant; (b) 33.3% of the share
options will be exercisable commencing on the first trading day after
the expiration of the 36-month period (the third anniversary) from the
respective dates of grant and ending on the last trading day of the
48-month period from the respective dates of grant; and (c) 33.4%
of the share options will be exercisable commencing on the first
trading day after the expiration of the 48-month period (the fourth
anniversary) from the respective dates of grant and ending on the
last trading day of the 72-month period from the respective dates of
grant.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Director(s)”) has declared an interim dividend of 33.0 HK cents (2024
26.5 HK cents) per share for the six months ended 30 June 2025
which will be payable on 25 September 2025 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company (the
“Register of Members”) on 16 September 2025.

2025 FHHARE
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COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRBIWE S

For the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders’ entitlement to
the interim dividend, the Register of Members will be closed from
11 September 2025 to 16 September 2025, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered.
In order to qualify for the interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2025, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 10 September 2025.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS

The first half of 2025 saw heightened uncertainty surrounding
U.S. tariffs and trade policies, coupled with escalating geopolitical
conflicts, which impeded international economic collaboration and
triggered financial market turbulence, collectively amplifying downside
risks to the global economy.

Since 2021, the global shipbuilding industry has been in a new
upcycle, with annual new vessel orders surpassing 100 million dead
weight tonnage (“DWT”) for four consecutive years. However, 2025
has brought unprecedented challenges due to a complex external
environment, leading to a sharp contraction in new vessel orders.
In the first half of 2025, global new vessel orders plummeted to 647
vessels (46.78 million DWT), marking a 57.9% year-on-year decline in
terms of DWT — the lowest volume for the first half of the year since
2020. From the perspective of vessel types involved in transactions,
with the broad-based weakness in most major vessel segments,
container vessels emerged as the sole bright spot, with new 201
vessels (21.74 million DWT/1.92 million twenty-foot equivalent units
(TEUs)) ordered in the first half of 2025, up 27.2% year-on-year in
terms of DWT and accounting for 46.5% of total orders. Meanwhile,
alternative-fuelled vessels continued to gain traction, reinforcing their
role in the green and low carbon transition of the shipping industry.
As of the end of June 2025, global outstanding orders for alternative-
fuelled vessels reached 2,038 vessels (160.96 million DWT),
representing 41.5% of total orders on hand in terms of DWT.

2025 INTERIM REPORT 1 1
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Despite the decline in newbuild vessel orders, the Group capitalised
on the active vessel delivery market under the current shipbuilding
boom, fuelling expansion in its ship trading agency and production
and sale of coatings businesses. COSCO SHIPPING International’s
operational performance improved steadily, achieving another strong
performance in the first half of the year, with profit before income tax

from its core shipping services business increasing by 26% year-on-
year.

1. ROEE — MERKSE 1. Core Business — Shipping Services
AEEZLEBMERBGEETEZDE The Group’s core business of shipping services mainly include
MMESRERS - REBEMRS - ship trading agency services, insurance brokerage services,
RPN M B e - B R E E T8 supply of marine equipment and spare parts, production and
ERMERBEESE - sale of coatings and intelligent shipping services, etc..

HRN REXSEMERSEZD During the period, revenue from the Group’s shipping services
W A &1,928,259,0007% ot (2024 amounted to HK$1,928,259,000 (2024: HK$1,667,279,000),
F :1,667,279,000% L) ' A £ representing a year-on-year increase of 16%. Profit before
F16% © fin i AR % % /9 AT 15 B Al & income tax from shipping services reached HK$410,991,000
M A410,991,00058 7© (2024 4F : (2024: HK$326,762,000), up 26% year-on-year, which was
326,762,000 7T) * [A b £ F26% ° mainly due to strong performance in the ship trading agency
TERHMMESINRERER EERM and production and sales of coatings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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1.2

THRBIWE S

Ship Trading Agency Services

The Group’s ship trading agency business is principally
engaged in the provision of agency services relating to
shipbuilding, ship trading and chartering for shipping
enterprises.

During the period, revenue from the ship trading agency
segment of the Group was HK$97,791,000 (2024
HK$49,554,000), up 97% year-on-year. Segment
profit before income tax was HK$81,809,000 (2024:
HK$36,525,000), up 124% year-on-year. This was mainly
due to significant year-on-year growth in newbuild vessel
deliveries, coupled with expanded client acquisition which
boosted both newbuild vessel orders, consequently
increasing commission income.

During the period, the Group’s total number of newbuild
vessels delivery was 22 (2024: 10), aggregating 1,192,700
DWT (2024: 836,486 DWT). A total number of 58 (2024:
19) newbuild vessels have been ordered, aggregating
4,102,000 DWT (2024: 1,912,300 DWT). In addition, the
sale and purchase of a total of 10 (2024: 20) second-hand
vessels were recorded, aggregating 483,185 DWT (2024
872,199 DWT).

Insurance Brokerage Services

The Group’s insurance brokerage services business is
primarily engaged in providing insurance and reinsurance
intermediary services of marine and non-marine insurance,
including the provision of professional insurance brokerage
such as risk assessment and analysis, designing insurance
and reinsurance programmes, discussing insurance
coverage, reviewing insurance policies, claims adjustment
and claims handling for domestic and international
customers and for which it receives service commissions.

2025 INTERIM REPORT 1 3
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During the period, revenue from the insurance brokerage
segment of the Group was HK$119,639,000 (2024:
HK$111,633,000), up 7% year-on-year. Segment
profit before income tax was HK$83,841,000 (2024:
HK$75,808,000), up 11% year-on-year. This was mainly
due to the further expanding client base and growing
market share, alongside substantial premium rate hiked in
hull, protection & indemnity (P&l), and war risk insurance,
which collectively boosted commission income during the
period.

Supply of Marine Equipment and Spare Parts

The Group’s supply of marine equipment and spare parts
business is principally engaged in the sale and installation
of equipment and spare parts for existing and newbuild
vessels, as well as equipment for radio communications
systems, satellite communications and navigation systems
for ships, offshore facilities, coastal stations and land
users; marine materials supply and voyage repair. Its
business network covers cities such as Hong Kong,
Shanghai and Beijing and countries such as Japan,
Singapore, Germany and the United States, etc..

During the period, revenue from the supply of marine
equipment and spare parts segment of the Group was
HK$886,183,000 (2024: HK$909,982,000), down 3%
year-on-year. Segment profit before income tax was
HK$54,103,000 (2024: HK$56,853,000), down 5%
year-on-year. This was mainly due to ongoing shipping
market volatility, exacerbated by tariff-related trade
disputes, which prompted key customers to control the
procurement volume and tighten procurement budgets,
thereby squeezing gross margins.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THRBIWE S

1.4 Production and Sale of Coatings

The coating business of the Group primarily includes
the production and sale of container coatings, industrial
heavy-duty anti-corrosion coatings and marine coatings.
COSCO Kansai Paint & Chemicals (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
(“COSCO Kansai (Zhuhai)”), =B FAZEH(EB)BR A
7] (COSCO Kansai Paint (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*) (“COSCO
Kansai Paint (Shanghai)”) and & iz @8 75 &2 £k T (L 8)
A PR A 7] (COSCO Kansai Paint & Chemicals (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.) (“COSCO Kansai (Shanghai)”) are non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company. COSCO Kansai
(Zhuhai) and COSCO Kansai Paint (Shanghai), which have
their own plants, are principally engaged in the production
and sale of coatings, while COSCO Kansai (Shanghali) is
primarily engaged in the sale of coatings. Jotun COSCO,
a 50/50 joint venture formed by the Company and Jotun
A/S, Norway, an international coatings supplier, is
principally engaged in the production and sale of marine
coatings. Nasurfar Changshu, in which the Company
held a 33% equity interest, is principally engaged in the
research and development, production and sales of
biomaterial application products, including surfactants,
coating raw materials and additives, as well as resin
maodifiers, etc..

During the period, revenue from the coatings segment of
the Group was HK$822,892,000 (2024: HK$595,777,000),
up 38% year-on-year. Segment profit before income tax
was HK$204,138,000 (2024: HK$169,697,000), up 20%
year-on-year.

For container coatings, the business saw robust growth
in demand for container production, which has driven up
the sales volume of container coatings, as port congestion
and container vessel diversion delays hindered container
returns, and the replacement cycle for ageing containers
intensified. During the period, the sales volume of
container coatings surged by 94% year-on-year to 28,723
tonnes (2024: 14,790 tonnes).

* for identification purposes only
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The sales volume of industrial heavy-duty anti-corrosion
coatings (including workshop primer) rose 4% year-on-
year to 11,167 tonnes (2024: 10,713 tonnes), driven by
continuous robust infrastructure injection in China, which
maintained steady demand in the anti-corrosion coatings
market.

For marine coatings, the sales volume of Jotun COSCQO’s
marine coatings amounted to 69,186,000 litres (equivalent
to approximately 93,401 tonnes) (2024: 58,367,000 litres
(equivalent to approximately 78,795 tonnes)), up 19%
year-on-year. Among which, the sales volume of coatings
for newbuild vessels reached 48,719,000 litres (2024
39,233,000 litres), up 24% year-on-year. The sales volume
of coatings for repair and maintenance was 20,467,000
litres (2024: 19,134,000 litres), up 7% year-on-year.
During the period, the Group’s share of profit from Jotun
COSCO was HK$171,319,000 (2024: HK$141,466,000),
up 21% year-on-year. This was mainly due to the increase
in marine coatings sales volume amid robust newbuild
vessel deliveries and improved the gross profit margins
resulted from stringent cost control measures.

During the period, the Group’s share of profit from
Nasurfar Changshu was HK$5,612,000 (2024:
HK$5,837,000), down 4% year-on-year.

Intelligent Shipping Services

The Group’s intelligent shipping services business is
dedicated to providing full life cycle green, low-carbon,
and digital intelligent solutions for the shipping industry.
The Company and F &8 EEHE I 5 B R A7) (COSCO
SHIPPING Technology Co., Ltd.*) jointly established A
EBEFEBEMMIRE AR QR (COSCO SHIPPING
Green Digital Intelligence Ship Services Co., Ltd.*) (“Green
Intelligence Ship Services”), in which the Company held
51% equity interest. Green Intelligence Ship Services is
principally engaged in the development and application of
digital intelligent solutions for vessels.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRBIWE S

During the period, revenue from the segment of intelligent
shipping services of the Group was HK$1,754,000 (2024:
HK$333,000), and the segment loss before income tax
amounted to HK$12,900,000 (2024: loss before income
tax of HK$12,121,000). The loss was mainly resulted from
the fact that Green Intelligence Ship Services was still at
the stage of start-up investment and the research and
development of products.

2. General Trading

The Group’s general trading business is principally engaged
in the trading, storage, processing, and supply of asphalt and
other comprehensive trading.

During the period, revenue from the general trading segment of
the Group amounted to HK$5,859,000 (2024: HK$85,608,000),
down 93% year-on-year. The sales volume of asphalt declined
by 92% year-on-year to 1,641 tonnes (2024: 20,285 tonnes),
in line with the smooth progress of the Group’s phase-out
from the asphalt operation. Segment profit before income tax
amounted to HK$15,113,000 (2024: HK$9,209,000). This was
mainly due to the reversal of provision for impairment of trade
receivables.

During the period, the Group’s share of profit from Zhejiang
Four Brothers Rope amounted to HK$6,144,000 (2024:
HK$7,402,000), down 17% year-on-year. This was mainly due
to the decrease in income and gross profit margin.

As disclosed in the inside information announcement of the Company
in relation to the litigation published on 14 November 2024, Sinfeng
Marine Services Pte. Ltd. (“Sinfeng”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, was served with a claim lodged by a third
party commercial bank against Sinfeng in the General Division of the
High Court of the Republic of Singapore on 7 November 2024. Based
on the assessment, the litigation has no material adverse impact on
the business or daily operations of the Group as a whole and has no
significant financial impact on the Group.

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. / 2025 INTERIM REPORT 1 7
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PROSPECTS

The front-loading effects on imports and exports observed in the first
half of the year, driven by anticipated tariff increases, are expected
to gradually subside in the second half of 2025. This could negatively
impact economic activity in export-oriented economies. Furthermore,
uncertainties surrounding trade and fiscal policies are increasing, and
risks to the global economy continue to accumulate. However, since
the average effective tariff rate in the United States has remained
below the level announced in April, the International Monetary Fund
(the “IMF”) revised its global growth forecast for 2025 upward to 3.0%
in its “World Economic Outlook” published in July 2025, an increase
of 0.2 percentage point from its April projection. For the same reason,
the IMF also significantly increased its global trade volume growth
forecast for 2025 by 0.9 percentage point from 1.7% in April to 2.6%.

In the shipbuilding market, the global shipyard capacity utilisation has
reached elevated levels. Amid tightening dock availability, lengthening
delivery timelines and persistently high new vessel prices, some
shipowners are opting to defer fleet renewal plans, with a growing
wait-and-see sentiment permeating the market. Coupled with the
aforementioned tariff policies, U.S. section 301 investigations and
decarbonisation regulations and other factors, global new vessel
orders are projected to enter a cyclical downturn in 2025.

2025 FHHARE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THRBIWE S

From an industrial development perspective, the core drivers of the
global shipbuilding cycle remain fundamentally intact. Over the long
term, intensifying geopolitical tensions, major-power rivalry and trade
frictions are accelerating the reshaping of global trade patterns,
while carbon neutrality commitments are promoting energy structure
transition, triggering corresponding shifts in seaborne trade structures
and shipping routes that will unlock new demand. The dual forces
of tightening environmental regulations and large-scale fleet renewal
needs continue to propel the shipbuilding market forward. With
clearer eco-technology pathways, evolving alternative fuel supply
chains, and maturing green intelligent marine technologies, which
pushes further transformation of the industry. The sector’s long-term
fundamentals remain robust, and the current market consolidation
phase presents a strategic window for structural optimisation and
breakthrough technological innovation.

Against this backdrop, COSCO SHIPPING International is strategically
aligned with the green decarbonisation and digital transformation
in shipping. By concentrating on two key growth pillars, the “Digital
Intelligence Shipping Services Platform” and the “Marine New Energy
Platform”, the Company is accelerating its evolution into a technology
driven maritime services leader, pioneering innovations in intelligent
shipping solutions and clean marine energy. Through the building
of a new development model, the Company will strive to generate
sustainable value for the Shareholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Since 30 June 2025 and up to the date of this report, there have
been no significant events affecting the Group.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,
311 Gloucester Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

ERPMEE) G EBSHAERAR
BB S 831158
SEERELEABAENTE

To the Board of Directors of COSCO SHIPPING International
(Hong Kong) Co., Ltd.
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim financial information set out on pages
22 to 71, which comprise the condensed consolidated statement
of financial position of COSCO SHIPPING International (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
as at 30 June 2025 and the condensed consolidated income
statement, the condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-
month period then ended, and other explanatory notes. The Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited require the preparation of a report on interim financial
information to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof
and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 (“HKAS 34”), “Interim
Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The directors of the Company
are responsible for the preparation and presentation of this interim
financial information in accordance with HKAS 34. Our responsibility
is to express a conclusion on this interim financial information based
on our review, and to report our conclusion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim Financial
Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”
issued by the HKICPA. A review of the interim financial information
consists of making enquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other

2025 FHHAR &



ANETEFNBE S/ BAESHRMA
PR8I B TR A BE B R F
BEAFHE - At - RFITERRETER

4+

=1

-

REZRMNEFRGER  RMOLEZREW
=R SHMBE ERENTHYHE
HMESERTEREREEL S ERE

345 IREL -
H{hE18

N AR BB 75 B KL P B A = 2024 £ 6 A 30 H
IEAREABENLERERGEKER S
e rEKER HHREEREHE
RERGERSRERARBBI EHRE
gtk E BSEBEEZE2024F6A30H Lt
NEAMBEAP R EER - &5 R
BERBS —BZBAEN - ZIZBER
2024 F 8 H23 ARtz P B B E K3 R K

QL =T 4k
%ﬁ%f‘%uT%DnHﬂO

2N Fh HA B 75 B BB #2024 F 12 A 31 H
B LE B2 BR 47 & B 75 4R 0 3= % AR 8 AR A B
EhME ES5BEEE2024F12 A 31
BIEFERNLEMEHRE - AR —ZEAD
B ZIX BRI N 20253 A26 H %S
REMBRRERERBER -

EXRBM(ER) SHMEBHAERAT
HEDF AT

REH

HEFESHmIT PO7788

BB
2025F8 A 27 A

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

REPORT ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
R B ENNERRS

review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance
that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be
identified in an audit. Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the interim financial information of the Group is not
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with HKAS 34.

OTHER MATTER

The comparative condensed consolidated income statement, the
condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month
period ended 30 June 2024 and the relevant explanatory notes
included in this interim financial information were extracted from the
interim financial information of the Group for the six-month period
ended 30 June 2024 reviewed by another auditor who expressed
an unmodified conclusion on that interim financial information on 23
August 2024.

The comparative condensed consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024 and the relevant explanatory notes
included in this interim financial information were extracted from the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 audited by the same auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements on 26
March 2025.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Wang Kei

Practising Certificate Number: PO7788

Hong Kong
27 August 2025
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MERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
fEBRGRE R E R

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
H E2025%6 A30H 1L/~ EA

Unaudited
KRB
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30HLEAEA
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FET
WA Revenue 5 1,934,118 1,752,887
$HE KA Cost of sales (1,435,315) (1,351,259)
ER Gross profit 498,803 401,628
EEE WS Management fee income 21(a) 42,277 36,256
Hizm R FIE — F5 Other income and gains — net 6 63,560 13,627
HE - TBE—RER Selling, administrative and general
expenses (354,277) (315,625)
KERR Operating profit 7 250,363 135,886
B e Finance income 8 112,872 140,095
B 7% P AR Finance costs 8 (726) (1,155)
Bl — F58 Finance income — net 8 112,146 138,940
B E 5 Share of profits of joint ventures 5 178,709 149,636
FEAG B D &g A Share of profits of associates 5 8,616 11,083
P48 B Al s A Profit before income tax 549,834 435,545
g E A Income tax expenses 9 (55,209) (43,117)
B A 35 A Profit for the period 494,625 392,428
FEfRER Profit attributable to:
ARaE=FEAA Equity holders of the Company 487,223 388,041
JEPE SR = Non-controlling interests 7,402 4,387
494,625 392,428
HARQAGIERIFEA Earnings per share attributable to
FEL S IR & F equity holders of the Company
during the period
— EARREE - B — basic and diluted, HK cents 10 33.24 26.47

FI0E71 BN AKRLETBERHLE  The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited
FRHAB S BRI R I D o condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ERFES 2 EKER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HE20259F6 308 L/~ EA

Unaudited
RIGES
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30HLA@EA
2025 2024
2025 2024 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
R A 35 A Profit for the period 494,625 392,428
H2mks (Ei8) Other comprehensive income/(losses)
AREAREZEH > ERER Items that may be reclassified
IR : subsequently to profit or loss:
BEeaEtENEERE Share of currency translation
=& differences of joint ventures 13,360 (7,486)
EEMIB AR - —REEDRHENK  Share of statutory reserves of
— B E R BIREE R subsidiaries, a joint venture and
BRI IE an associate, net of tax 1,546 235
EmE =R Currency translation differences 48,065 (21,481)
BrEEHsEEERE Items that will not be reclassified to
MIEE : profit or loss:
BEAnBEEZAEMEA Fair value gains on financial assets
W R BB E R at fair value through other
AR EBERSFE comprehensive income, net 28,676 19,114
HrHEm2mEmkas (EiE) Other comprehensive income/(losses)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, for the period 91,647 (9,618)
A2 EKE Total comprehensive income for
the period 586,272 382,810
PE{L 4 2 S Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
AArERFEAA Equity holders of the Company 573,104 380,922
FEFE 1 Non-controlling interests 13,168 1,888
586,272 382,810

FI0ETIENME I AREEAERASRE
R S E R ERBE D o

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR S IR R R

As at 30 June 2025
7202556 A30H
Unaudited Audited
REGEG KEEET
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
6 H30H 12 A31H
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FET FHET
'E ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
mEEE Intangible assets 12 355,365 359,764
E YN E ] Property, plant and equipment 12 198,461 195,902
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 12 40,236 42 257
A Investment properties 12 139,598 136,367
REETHEMTE Investments in joint ventures 690,161 759,695
REZ AR E Investments in associates 210,131 166,139
BEAARBESZBEMEMA  Financial assets at fair value through
Wt R IE B E other comprehensive income 13 113,448 84,772
EREFTIS T & B Deferred income tax assets 29,637 25,131
FERBNIRITIF K Non-current bank deposits 16 1,032,677 -
2,809,714 1,770,027
REBEE Current assets
e Inventories 14 237,946 401,734
B 5 K EAth B UK Trade and other receivables 15 1,821,963 1,213,271
A Yo o] & BRFT 1S 4 Current income tax recoverable 3,441 5,061
X PRSI ERIT IR Restricted bank deposits 16 5,483 5,399
RBTFEFAREE & Current deposits and cash and cash
REFED equivalents 16 5,053,350 5,938,078
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 7,122,183 7,563,543
REE Total assets 9,931,897 9,333,570
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR S IR R 3R

As at 30 June 2025

202546 A30H
Unaudited Audited
RICES ST
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
6 H30H 12831 H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B v FET FET
R EQUITY
AATERFEAEM Capital and reserves attributable to
BRAR #E the Company’s equity holders
fi% 7% Share capital 17 146,597 146,597
B Reserves 7,983,909 7,725,989
8,130,506 7,872,586
FFEFIMRER Non-controlling interests 349,921 336,753
?E«*g?ﬁ 777777777777777777777777 th?.l 7eigiu?ity 8,480,427 8,209,339
=R LIABILITIES
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
HEaE Lease liabilities 18 9,694 11,808
BEFSHAaRE Deferred income tax liabilities 80,213 77,334
89007 89142
REBEE Current liabilities
B 5 Kk E AR Trade and other payables 18 1,073,450 807,372
BHEE Contract liabilities 18 233,501 203,303
BEHIFTISHAE Current income tax liabilities 49,585 20,619
HEaE Lease liabilities 18 5,027 3,795
e 1,361,563 1,035,089
wa| Total liabilites 1,451,470 1,124,231
HEZRERE Total equity and liabilities 9,931,897 9,333,570

FIET71 BT A RKLETEEHLS  The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited

TEMBEEMMERBED o

condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARG E RS ER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
H E2025%6 A30H 1L/~ EA

Unaudited
REET
Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
FFEHIM
ARRERFEARKE Ei R
Share Other  Retained
capital  reserves profits Total

BRE HttFE KREBEF #st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR FERT TR TERT

720251 A1H  Balance at 1 January 2025

ked- 146,597 556,692 7,169,297 7,872,586 336,753 8,209,339
Hi R A Profit for the period - - 487,223 487,223 7,402 494,625
Hiv2E K& Other comprehensive

income
A EREE®  Share of currency
mEER translation differences of
joint ventures - 13,360 - 13,360 - 13,360
el = ERE Share of statutory reserves,

HIBR A : net of tax, of:

— fEBAE — subsidiaries - 767 - 767 - 767

- —ReERE — ajoint venture - 121 - 121 - 121

— —REE QA — an associate - 229 - 229 - 229

— JEiE M — non-controlling

interests - - - - 429 429
EBREER Currency translation
differences - 42,728 - 42,728 5,337 48,065

BAREBEBBE  Fairvalue gains on financial
fih 2 E Wz R IR assets at fair value through

MBEENAR other comprehensive

BEWKZFE income, net - 28,676 - 28,676 - 28,676
HZE2025%6 A Total comprehensive

30 H IFHf 2 income for the period
_EEAE ended30June2025 - 85881 487,223 573,104 13,168 586,272
BEBANR S Transactions with owners
efme Dvidendpad - - (315184) (315184 - - (315184
20256 A30H Balance at 30 June 2025

e 146,597 642,573 7,341,336 8,130,506 349,921 8,480,427

FIET1ENMFEIAREEFEALS  The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited
FHIE S AR R D o condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EE ey e TE

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HE20259F6 308 L/~ EA

Unaudited
RISELT
Non-
controlling Total
Attributable to equity holders of the Company interests equity
FEHE i1
AREEGFE AERE g s
Share Other  Retained
capital reserves profits Total
A HfhiEE RERR st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$SO000 HKEO000  HK$000
FET FET FET FAET FET FET
720241 A1H  Balance at 1 January 2024
&5 BR 146,507 578,451 7,114,407 7,839,455 347,944 8,187,399
ER 4 A Profit for the period - - 388,041 388,041 4,387 392,428
Hft2Mm (&), Other comprehensive
I 2 (losses)/income
A& R¥EE  Share of currency
BEERE translation differences of
joint ventures - (7,486) - (7,486) - (7,486)
FE{E—REEZ AR Share of statutory reserves
B TE 4 of an associate, net of tax
MERHIR - 235 - 235 - 235
EMHmEER Currency translation
differences - (18,982) - (18,982) (2,499 (21,481)
BAREBESBBE  Fairvalue gains on financial
i 2 T Wi s 50 R assets at fair value through
MBEENAR other comprehensive
EBEEKRFE income, net - 19,114 - 19,114 - 19,114
HE2024%F6 A Total comprehensive (losses)/
0HI-HEEE income for the period
m|(E8) M= ended 30 June 2024 - (7,119) 388,041 380,922 1,888 382,810
HEEANKS Transactions with owners
f fEa PR B 2B Transfer between reserves - 232 (232) - - -
BEERE Dividend paid - - (256,545) (256,545 - (256,545)
HEFANRS Total transactions with
HE owners - 232 (256,777) (256,545) - (256,545)
R2024%E6 8308 Balance at 30 June 2024
W R 146,597 571,564 7,245,671 7,963,832 349,832 8,313,664

FEI0E71 AWM FETI AR KRR
FRHABT TS E R R R E D o

ZT B4R A  The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited

condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ARG RERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
H E2025%6 A30H 1L/~ EA

Unaudited
RGES
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30HLA@EA
2025 2024
2025 2024 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FET FHET
BFELEEEHNIRESHKRE  Cash flows from operating activities
LEMMEANE S Cash generated from operations 351,628 41,378
B ETER Income tax paid (27,985) (18,863)
KESEBFTEAR)FEIEE  Net cash generated from operating
77777 activities 323,643 22,515
FEHREZHNHEELFRE  Cash flows from investing activities
FIHEBB=@AMIESE  (ncrease)/decrease in cash deposits
TR GEm, with maturity over three months (2,290,173) 349,916
=R &R Interest received 79,579 83,449
WERR AR AN EEE®  Dividends received from financial
Hih2E KR assets at fair value through other
A EMRRE comprehensive income - 2,375
WE R B & EEMLE  Dividend received from joint ventures 37,480 77,199
UGB 2R B B = A RIMIAR S Dividend received from associates 2,029 -
BREYZR e RFE Net proceeds from disposal of
FriS s %58 property, plant and equipment 236 2,218
BARLEE Purchases of intangible assets (526) (1,929)
A BB REE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (10,577) (2,840)
WEE—RKIBARATARK  Net cash used in acquisition of
FRE a subsidiary - (162,442)
H—RBENETEE Net cash used in capital injection to/
DAV ¥ LN formation of an associate
FrAMFHR® (34,219) (3,854)
wEEE (FTA), Net cash (used in)/generated from
FIEARFHRS investing activities (2,216,171) 344,092
FEMETHNIRESAE  Cash flows from financing activities
EEHEARE Repayment of lease liabilities (1,665) (1,803)
[RENEE/P 7 I7 %N Finance costs paid (414) (761)
MAREESEEA Dividend paid to the Company’s equity
TATRR B holders (315,184) (256,545)
BREESFTANFES Net cash used in financing activities (317,263) (259,109)
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mERH

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRFEERERER

For the six months ended 30 June 2025
HE20259F6 308 L/~ EA

Unaudited
RGES
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30HLA@EA
2025 2024
2025 2024 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FET FHET
RERBESEYWOHL), Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
B FEE cash equivalents (2,209,791) 107,498
YR e REEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period 4,413,554 1,938,284
HekHaEEYER Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and
sk, (EE) cash equivalents 33,841 (7,068)
HMAREAESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period 2,237,604 2,038,714
REeERBREEEBYDH Analysis of cash and cash equivalents:
REFFARBRE R Total deposits and cash and cash
ReZEED equivalents 16 6,091,510 6,008,533
B ZRERITERK Less: restricted bank deposits (5,483) (5,478)
BFmM A LS E A cash deposits with maturity more
B=EANKE® than three months from date of
REFEHK placement (3,848,423) (3,964,341)
HREAESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period 16 2,237,604 2,038,714

FI0R7T1EMMTE I ARKEEE4GS  The notes on pages 30 to 71 form an integral part of this unaudited
FREABT IS BRI A B RE 2 o condensed consolidated interim financial information.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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GENERAL INFORMATION

COSCO SHIPPING International (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of shipping services and
general trading.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Its principal place of business is 47th Floor,
COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is Bl i& /¥ /&
EBEE AR A A (China COSCO Shipping Corporation Limited*)
(“COSCO SHIPPING”), a state-owned enterprise established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information for the six months ended 30 June 2025 (the
“Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information”) is presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated.

The Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information was approved by the board of directors of the
Company for issue on 27 August 2025.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information has been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) and the applicable disclosure requirements of
Appendix D2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

*for identification purposes only
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information should be read in conjunction with the annual
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024, which were prepared in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA.

The accounting policies and methods used in the preparation
of the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information are consistent with those set out in the annual
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 except that the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the HKICPA which are effective for the
Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2025:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability

The adoption of the above amendments to existing standard
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and financial positions for the current and prior periods and/
or on the disclosures set out in the Unaudited Condensed
Consolidated Interim Financial Information.

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective

The following new standard and amendments to existing
standards have been published by the HKICPA and are
relevant to the Group’s operations. They are not yet effective for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2025 and have not
been early adopted by the Group:

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. / 2025 INTERIM REPORT 31
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEEN PRSP BERME

2 mEEERSFBER(E) 2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

EEMEERERNFETR New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting

RETEBVBRSENS Standards in issue but not yet effective

TR (& (Continued)

BRI BRELER SRIAMNSE Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the
FIRREBRTE KEt 82 and HKFRS 7 Classification and
WEENETRD Measurement of Financial
EH) Instruments?

BAENBRELA BRIKBEREN Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-
FOREE B B H)? and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity?
WMEERETHRE
EH)

BRI RELER REERHKS Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
F10RREBB L DRISEEE and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
RAIE28HMEET HNBEEHER Associate or Joint Venture'

N

BRI BRELER BRI BRELER Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements

SR ERMEBET S EAFE Accounting Standards to HKFRS Accounting
i — F1152 Standards Volume 112

BRI BRELER BBHRENZ5 HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
E18% Rk E: Financial Statements?®

BRT B RELER BARTTETH HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public
£ 1957 MBAR : HES Accountability: Disclosures®

L RETAHEB R ZEFRANFEE A L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

E300

2 MR2026F1 A1 Bk 2% B FEHR 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
SR

g MN2027F1 A1z BHABENFEEH g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
HEX

ARREFEES B TIXAAESN
RAEMFRT RGBT T BT B RE
RS AR AT &R A2 B4R
EUBRRBEATE -

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the adoption of all other new and amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

mEEERSTBE (&)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS Accounting
Standards in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements

HKFRS 18 sets out requirements on presentation and
disclosures in financial statements and it will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The new HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements to present specified categories
and defined subtotals in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income; provides
disclosures on management-defined performance measures in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements and improves
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. Minor amendments to
HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and the consequential amendments to other HKFRS
Accounting Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early adoption
permitted. The adoption of HKFRS 18 has no impact on the
Group’s financial performance and financial positions, but has
impact on presentation of the consolidated income statement
and consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial
Information does not include all financial risk management
information and disclosures required in the annual financial
statements and should be read in conjunction with the
Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

There have been no material changes in the risk
management personnel or in any risk management
policies since the year end.

Compared to the year end, there was no material change
in the contractual undiscounted cash outflows for financial
liabilities.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments and
investment properties that are carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined
as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).
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(b) A AEBEMAF (B) (b) Fair value estimation (Continued)
TEREZVAEEBER2025F6 A The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
BURAREBEEFENTBE and investment properties that are measured at fair value
EREEYE - at 30 June 2025.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—E  EZHKE  E=RH st

HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
TERT TET TEr TR

5E Assets
BAREBEEBEM Financial assets at fair value
2EM s ER % through other comprehensive
BE income (“FVOCI)
— RAEZ — equity securities 113,448 - - 113,448
BEME Investment properties
e E — commercial — Hong Kong - - 29,600 29,600
— B - B — commercial — Overseas - - 36,962 36,962
- - F% — residential — Hong Kong - - 23,900 23,900
—fFE - — residential — PRC - - 49,136 49,136
113,448 - 139,598 253,046
TREIAEBR2024F12 A The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
SIBUAREBEFENTBE and investment properties that are measured at fair value
EREEME - at 31 December 2024.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H/B  FE-H/R  E=HF Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TET TET FET
BE Assets
BAREBEEREM Financial assets at FVOCI
FHRELETE
BE
— BRAES — equity securities 84,772 - - 84,772
REME Investment properties
—@AX-F8 — commercial — Hong Kong - - 29,600 29,600
— P — B — commercial — Overseas - - 34,478 34,478
—FE-F% — residential — Hong Kong - - 23,900 23,900
—fFE-— — residential — PRC - - 48,389 48,389

84,772 - 136,367 221,139
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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(b) Fair value estimation (Continued)

2025 FHHAR &

There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3 during the period.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included
in Level 1 comprise primarily equity investments classified
as financial assets at FVOCI.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2
fair values

Level 2 comprises other observable inputs which are
not included within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy or
market-corroborated inputs based on or supported by
observable market data.

There were no Level 2 financial and non-financial
instruments as at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
Level 3. Management has taken reference to the net asset
value of the investment to determine its fair value as at the
reporting date.

Fair values of completed commercial and residential
properties are generally derived using the direct
comparison method. This valuation method is based on
comparing the property to be valued directly with other
comparable properties, which have recently transacted.
However, given the heterogeneous nature of real estate
properties, appropriate adjustments are usually required
to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect
the price likely to be achieved by the property under
consideration.

Valuation process

The Group’s finance department manages the valuations
of financial assets and financial liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including Level 3 fair values
and presents the results of valuations to the management
for review and approval on a half-yearly basis. Changes
in Level 2 and Level 3 fair values are analysed where
appropriate and reported with reasons for the fair value
movements to the management.
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(e) Valuation process (Continued)
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The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. Valuations were performed to determine the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2024. The directors are of the view that
valuations of these investment properties as at 30 June
2025 (2024: 30 June 2024) approximate their fair values
as at 31 December 2024 (2024: 31 December 2023). The
investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued by
Landscope Surveyor Limited and Cushman & Wakefield
Limited, independent qualified valuers not related to the
Group, who hold the recognised relevant professional
qualification and have recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued, at 31
December 2024 and 2023 respectively. The investment
properties in the PRC were revalued by Landscope
Surveyor Limited, an independent qualified valuer not
related to the Group, who holds the recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued, at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The overseas
investment property was revalued by Pioneer Property
Consultants LLP, an independent qualified valuer not
related to the Group, who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties
valued, at 31 December 2024 and 2023.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(f) Fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair values of the following financial assets and
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts:

o Non-current bank deposits
° Trade and other receivables
° Restricted bank deposits

° Current deposits and cash and cash equivalents

o Trade and other payables

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of interim financial information requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Information, the significant judgements made by
management in applying the Group’s accounting policies and
the key sources of estimation uncertainty were consistent with
those that applied to the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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5 WARDEBEHR 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
HIA R — R B iR ) & X5 (A Turnover, representing revenue, recognised at a point in time,
AT : during the period is as follows:

Six months ended 30 June

HBZ6H30HLEAMEA
2025 2024
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
ZEEE Sale of coatings 822,892 595,777
MR B R EGEE Sale of marine equipment and spare parts 886,183 909,982
mMEZRERAS K Commission income from ship trading
agency 97,791 49,554
Rz ERE e KE Commission income from insurance
brokerage 119,639 111,633
M BR S BHE Intelligent shipping services 1,754 333
—RE 5 General trading 5,859 85,608
1,934,118 1,752,887
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The executive directors have been identified as the chief
operating decision-makers. The executive directors review
the Group’s internal reports in order to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their
performance. Management considers the business from a
product perspective and has identified the following reportable
segments on the basis of these reports:

Business activities

RIEED

Coatings

Marine equipment and spare parts

fRa Rt Kt

Ship trading agency

MAE SR

Insurance brokerage
A=
Intelligent shipping services

B R BB

General trading

Production and sale of coatings, and holding of investments in joint
ventures, namely Jotun COSCO Marine Coatings (HK) Limited and & # iy
=4 MR B R 2 7 (Nasurfar Biomaterial Technology (Changshu)
Co., Ltd.")

HENMEERE  URBERGECENKE - AP REZMMER (B
B)BERATIREAMEREDM B ER QT

Trading and supply of marine equipment and spare parts, and holding of
investments in joint ventures

mRELREHESRERE  URFEERAEEERNKRE

Provision of agency services relating to shipbuilding, ship trading and
bareboat charter business, and holding of investments in a joint venture
and an associate

RUEFEMMEE MHEERAEMEBORERS  ARFEAR
—RAEEER—RKBEQFNKRE

Provision of insurance brokerage services

TR OR b B R AR 75

Provision of green, low-carbon and digital intelligent solutions for the full life
cycle of the shipping industry
REMEEE £ B RRES BRI R

Trading, storage, processing and supply of asphalt and other products,
and holding of investments in associates, including 7T PU 7. 48 2 & R A
7] (Zhejiang Four Brothers Rope Co., Ltd.*)

FEREMERNES A MIEHE UREBEERBE QMK
B - BEMNIMAEEERAA

*for identification purposes only
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5 WARSHEHR (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
EMETERREASEFENZAAE Others mainly comprise the holding of the Group’s financial
BERAMEEWBECLERVFEE assets at FVOCI, the results of Sinfeng Marine Services Pte.
Sinfeng Marine Services Pte. Ltd. (¥71& Ltd. and holding of investments in an associate, namely _ /&
MERBAER DA HEE - AR HREEEEERA R AR (Shanghai JOYFuel Green Energy Co.,
BER—RBEATMNKRE LSS Ltd.).

ERBERBERAR -

ERERBEEPTEHATDR BT ER Management assesses the performance of the operating
Rt E D FAKRIE o segments based on a measure of profit before income tax.
* (BEEF * for identification purposes only
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(Continued)
Inter-
General segment
Shipping services trading Others  elimination Total
ABE
MER -RES Hit b @t
Marine
equipment Ship Intelligent
and spare trading Insurance  shipping
Coatings parts agency brokerage  services Total
MHRE MEES RERS
2R RiE# RE  REREM 1 @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000
TR TiEx TEx TR TR TR TR TR TiER TiER
Six months ended and as at 30 June 2025
BZ2025F6A30 AL AEARKRZA
BHER Profit or loss items:
DEHRA Segment revenue 822,802 886,183 97,791 120,612 2,297 1,929,775 5,859 - (1,516) 1,934,118
AHERA Inter-segment revenue - - - (973) (543) (1,516) - - 1,516 -
SHEBREIRA Revenue from external customers 822,802 886,183 97,791 119,639 1,754 1,928,259 5,859 - - 1,934,118
PBBEET/(F8) Segment operating proft/(oss) 26,729 48209 80,087 79547  (12990) 221,582 6,108 5,454 - 233144
& W?% Finance income 774 4,884 1,179 4,382 90 11,309 424 1,036 - 12,769
BIBRA Finance costs (296) (326) &) (88) - (713) ?) 5) - (720)
EfE A& ER Share of profts of oint ventures 176,931 1,336 442 - - 178,709 - - - 178,709
AN R/ (FB) Share of profits/(losses) of associates - - 104 - - 104 8,583 ") - 8,616
AREERAET/ (58) Segment profit/loss) before income tax 204138 5403 81,809 83841 (129000 410,991 15,113 6,414 - 432518
FEHER Income tax expenses (6,545  (9.216) (1943  (15577) - (50,770) - - - (50,770)
AHBEEREET/ (5R) Segment profit/loss) after income tax 197,593 44887 62377 68264  (12,900) 360,221 15,113 6,414 - 381,748
EESERER Balance sheet items:
BrREE Total segment assets 1,821,880 1,344,279 264179 1,107,075 24,727 4562140 595044 201,952 (2,073) 5,357,063
EHREEDRE Total segment assets include:
- hERE — Joint ventures 670,593 12,629 6,939 - - 690,161 - - - 690,161
- BEATE — Associates - - 1,944 - - 1,944 169,899 38,288 - 210,131
BhHEE Total segment liabilities 348,146 383,059 64,502 548,269 9,756 1,353,732 33,848 220 (2,073) 1,385,727
HbiER Other items:
FEREH (MBREEAR(EE)  Depreciation and amortisation, net of amount
capitalised (8956)  (1,350) (624) (6,515 (345)  (17,790) (598) - - (18389
EHRUGURE (BfR) /Bl (Provision)/Reversal of provision for
Bt ~ impairment of trade receivables, net (19,968) 571 - - - (19397) 11,045 - - (8,352)
Ef BN ERERRTE Reversal of provision for impairment of other
receivables, net - - - - - - 2,419 - - 2,419
HFEHERE)/BEEEDFE  (Provision)/Reversal of provision for
impairment of inventories, net (1,744) - - - - (1,744) 551 - - (1,193)
FRBBENTE (RAAEME  Additions to non-current assets (other than
BREMZERRLENE financial assets at FVOCI, deferred income
BE  BEMBHEER tax assets and non-current bank deposits)
FRBRITFEARIN) 3,459 2,602 1,584 1,229 2295 11,169 - - - 11,169
Year ended and as at 31 December 2024
HE024F12 A3 AILFE RINZA
RERERER Balance sheet items:
BrHAE Total segment assets 1,902,744 1,183,879 260,184 776,361 28965 4,152,133 575715 138,790 (787) 4,865,851
BANEERRE Total segment assets include:
- RERE — Joint ventures 742194 11,107 6,304 - - 759,69 - - - 759,69
- BERA — Associates - - 1,810 - - 1,810 160,569 3,760 - 166,139
BAHEE Total segment liabilities 391526 283916 49,016 287,218 1,388 1,013,064 34,536 1,071 (787) 1,047,884
HftEg Other items:
FRBEENTE (RAAEE  Additions to non-current assets (other than
ZREMEERETRNHE financial assets at FVOC and deferred
BERBRFMEHEERN) income tax assets) 6,437 3,369 1,481 5,156 96 16,539 150 - - 16,689
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(Continued)
Inter-
General segment
Shipping services trading Others  elimination Total
7 EE
Bk —%2% it Eafic &t
Marine
equipment Ship Inteligent
and spare trading  Insurance  shipping
Coatings parts agency  brokerage  services Total
WhiRE  WEES gk
2R Rt RE  RREM BHE &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fi#n Fin FiEn Fin
Six months ended and as at 30 June 2024
HZ202456 A0 A ILNEAR RIHZE
BRER Profit or loss items:
AEHKA Segment revenue 595,777 909,982 49564 112,366 1,625 1,669,204 85,608 - (1,925) 1,752,887
AEEBA Inter-segment revenue - - - (733) (1,192) (1,925) - - 1,925 -
SNPEPHA Revenue from extermal customers 505777 909982 49554 111,633 333 1667219 85608 - - 1752887
PHEBER/(BB) Segment operating profit/oss) 1261 49366 33946 71792 (12252 164113 (3,094) 7,164 - 168,183
B Finance income 1,463 6,380 1,727 4,200 131 13,901 1,462 1,136 - 16499
B Finance costs (330) (543) [ (184) - (1,059 72 6) - (1,1%)
FfEREERERN Share of profis of oint ventures 147,308 1,650 683 - - 149636 - - - 149636
FEEBENRRF/ (BB Share of profts/(losses) of associates - - 171 - - 171 10,913 1) - 11,083
PEFEHAERN/ (B8 Segment profit/loss) before income tax 169697 56858 36525 75808  (12121) 326762 9,209 8,204 - 344265
FEHER Income tax expenses (669) (10295  B701)  (14.8%4) - (40580 (15) - - (405%)
AHEEREET/ (BR) Segment profit/(loss) after income tax 163007 46558 27,824 60914 (12121) 286,182 9,194 8,294 - 303670
EEAERER Balance sheet items:
BrTEE Total segment assets 1,696,223 1,123677 377,609 1,028,838 44141 4270488 635,698 137,921 (3,473 5,040,634
BrREAERRE Total segment assets include:
- RER% — Joint ventures 503,744 10,958 6,457 - - 611,159 - - - 611,159
- BERA — Associates - - 1,917 - - 1,917 168,177 3,834 - 173928
BrFaE Total segment liabilities 322,880 268,094 82,889 512,170 4,822 1,190,855 25,340 21 (3,473) 1,212,933
HipER Other items:
FEREH (MBREEARIEE)  Depreciation and amortisation, net of amount
capitalised 7178 (6,299) (353 (1,840 09 (15690  (2,087) - -
BoRWGNE (BB /BB (Provision)/Reversal of provision for
REFHE impairment of trade receivables, net (3,154) - - - - (3,154 12,745 - - 9,591
RN R ERERR Reversal of provision for impalrment of other
receivables - - - - - - 136 - - 136
FERERETE Provision for impairment of inventories, net (1,411) - - - - (1,411) - - - (1,411)
FRBBENTE (RAAEME  Additions to non-current assets (other than
BREM 2 AT R B financial assets at FVOCI, deferred income
AE  BRAEHEER tax assets and non-current bank deposits)
FRBRITFEARIN) 2,01 722 1,449 3,123 47 7,412 - - - 7412

Q4 <:zszmpss) aRAT /20255 REHE



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEENERRE DA BERIE

5 WAKRZHER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Inter-
General segment
Shipping services trading Others  elimination Total
7 B
fER —RE5 £t 43 &:t
Marine
equipment Ship Intelligent
and spare trading  Insurance  shipping
Coatings parts agency  brokerage services Total
hMEE  MEES g R

2H Rt RE  REEM B @zt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKE000  HKE000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TET TET TET TET

Year ended and as at 31 December 2023
HE2003F12A31 BIEFERRER

EEAERER: Balance sheet items:
BHREE Total segment assets 1,706,128 1,206,006 365900 329,520 52,282 3,649,835 666,621 114,349 (647) 4,430,258
BANEERSE: Total segment assets include:
- RERE — Joint ventures 652,754 9,548 6,146 - - 068,448 - - - 068448
- BEATF — Associates - - 1,760 - - 1,760 168,201 - - 159,961
arfak Total segment liabilities 283916 360,239 85,819 142,078 532 872,584 61,365 210 (647) 933,612
HibiER Other items:

FRYEENTE BAAEMA  Additions to non-cumrent assets (other than
AREth 2 AR RA B financial assets at FVOC and deferred
BERBEFMEHEERN) income tax assets) 22,368 469 20 1,799 157 25,313 244 - - 25,557
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5 WARDZHER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

N5 AR e o3 BB AT S A A K B 42
AHEARSRE RIS B R FI R B R K

A reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ profit
before income tax to the Group’s profit after income tax is as
follows:

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30R1LEAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Al ¥R & o FBET 1S B A e A Profit before income tax for reportable
segments 426,104 335,971
E A 53 F0 B 15 B4 A A Profit before income tax for others 6,414 8,294
Fir & 53 B8 P13 B¢ Bl A Profit before income tax for all
segments 432,518 344,265
TR E A Rl AR ) 5 BB UL & 8 Elimination of segment income from
corporate headquarters (890) (659)
TR B AR B EREY o B0 B 75 U s Elimination of segments’ finance
1 5H income from corporate headquarters (6,938) -
NS G Corporate finance income 107,041 123,596
NETEY R0 %N Corporate finance costs (6) (19)
AR H s (1) 558 Corporate net exchange gains/(losses) 49,755 (4,532)
NEBEA - Mk Corporate expenses, net of income (31,646) (27,106)
AEB TS AR Profit before income tax for the Group 549,834 435,545
FrE RSt E R Income tax expenses for all segments (50,770) (40,595)
NEISTE R Corporate income tax expenses (4,439) (2,522)
AEBREHERH Profit after income tax for the Group 494,625 392,428
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WARDHEFR () 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
I RABRESHNREEEARH A reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets
MEERNHERRK to the Group’s total assets is as follows:
30 June 31 December 30 June
2025 2024 2024
20254 2024 F 2024 %F

6 H30H 12A31H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

THER FHET FHET
AR E D EREE Total assets for reportable segments 5,157,184 4,727,848 4,906,186
Hitbp BB EE Total assets for others 201,952 138,790 137,921
73 B 1 FE U Kk 8 Elimination of inter-segment
receivables (2,073) (787) (8,473)
FTE o Ef 4R & = Total assets for all segments 5,357,063 4,865,851 5,040,634
NBEE (EZAEFFHIA Corporate assets (mainly deposits
FIRe MR EEY) and cash and cash equivalents) 5,103,851 4,816,568 4,557,709
N AIAEEREE S PRI FEUL  Elimination of receivables between
KESE corporate headquarters and
segments (529,017) (348,849) (16,111)
AEBBEE Total assets for the Group 9,931,897 9,333,570 9,582,232
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5 WARZHEFR (&)

TH BRI HwEDH

fAEBERAKE

(Continued)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

A reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ liabilities

RERENHERK to the Group’s total liabilities is as follows:
30 June 31 December 30 June
2025 2024 2024
2025 2024 F 2024
6 A30H 12H31H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET FHET
ARENEBEE Total liabilities for reportable
segments 1,387,580 1,047,600 1,216,195
HitvpHEEE Total liabilities for others 220 1,071 211
o> B 1 e A~ KT 88 Elimination of inter-segment payables (2,073) (787) (3,473)
FrEnEBasE Total liabilities for all segments 1,385,727 1,047,884 1,212,933
NCIN=Ei Corporate liabilities 594,760 425,196 71,746
NAEREE S EBHY Elimination of payables between
fE 1< SR T 88 corporate headquarters and
segments (529,017) (348,849) (16,111)
AEBEBAE Total liabilities for the Group 1,451,470 1,124,231 1,268,568
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HihWm R AE — FHE 6 OTHER INCOME AND GAINS — NET
Six months ended 30 June
BZE6H30RIEAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHET
HipWz (BA) : Other income/(expenses):
— A&z — Rental income 1,499 1,617
—EXfHekENER — Direct operating expenses for
KEER generating rental income (27) (36)
—BRARBEBBEM — Dividend income from financial
2HEKE LRI assets at FVOCI
BEMNR S 5,782 7,175
Hihlzs — F58 Other income — net 7,254 8,756
HabFIB (Ei8) - Other gains/(losses):
—BREWME HER — Net gains on disposal of property,
RENGFE plant and equipment 104 2,075
— B S RUERE — (Provision)/Reversal of provision for
(BfB) /R fERm impairment of trade receivables,
FEE (MFFE15(0)) net (note 15(b)) (8,352) 9,591
— Hh R ROR E R — Reversal of provision for impairment
B EF & of other receivables, net 2,419 135
— FEREREFE — Provision for impairment of
inventories, net (1,193) (1,411)
— ALl — Subsidy income 682 381
— B R W (&8) F58 — Net exchange gains/(losses) 56,382 (7,309)
— Hit — Others 6,264 1,409
HiRlS - %8  Othergains —net 56,306 4,871
HElhas R AE — 558 Other income and gains — net 63,560 13,627
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7 RERF 7 OPERATING PROFIT
KERMNENBRTHIER - Operating profit is stated after charging the following:
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6H30R1LEAEA
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
EERANER (BEES Employee benefit expenses, including
e kAES) directors’ emoluments and provident
funds 253,458 231,390
HHEEEEEA Expenses related to short-term leases 20,923 16,863
WEREE BHKRERFEE  Depreciation and amortisation, net of
AR £ F 1,070,000/ 7C  amount capitalised in inventories
(2024 % : 1,689,000 7T ) totalling HK$1,070,000 (2024:
HK$1,689,000) 19,469 17,854
8 MKle: — FHE 8 FINANCE INCOME — NET
Six months ended 30 June
BZE6H30RH1EXR@EA
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
FEWZRE : Interest income from:
— —RAERMBAA — a fellow subsidiary 2,847 5,226
— RITHER — bank deposits 110,025 134,869
MBBae® Total finance income 112,872 140,095
HESGENEEBR Interest expenses on lease liabilities (312) (394)
Hh B 75 X% 8 Other finance charges (414) (761)
MuRARE Totalfinancecosts (726) (1,185)
Pigihas — F5 Finance income — net 112,146 138,940
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FREHRER

BT & A16.5% (2024 4F : 16.5% ) 5118
B -

FREMCEMSHC R ASE EEF
Bl 4 & R TS B A (5T FE SR B s A%
25% (20244 : 25%) 5t & -

H G INH IR E BEEA R 51 FE SR B it
MERAEERLEMERRBITN
B R ZEUENTF17%E
35% (2024 4F : 17% £ 35%) T &

BELEFMBHEAAEENEREZRNU

BEARERRMOBHRBHGE -

HINZE RS BRAR B I am R ABR B P18 3
SR :

REETTREREZRE DB E R

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2024: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the period.

The PRC enterprise income tax has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit derived from the Group’s operations
in the PRC for the period at 25% (2024: 25%).

Other overseas taxation has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the period at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates. These rates range
from 17% to 35% (2024: 17% to 35%) during the period.

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted

by the reporting date.

The amount of income tax charged for the period to the
condensed consolidated income statement is as follows:

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30R1EAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
EHFEH Current income tax
— RHj — current period
— BEFER — Hong Kong profits tax 16,409 15,917
— PR EMER — PRC enterprise income tax 34,140 13,327
— B 8INIE — other overseas taxation 3,764 4,246
— BEFE (GBRERE), — (over-provision)/under-provision
BETR in prior years
— REEMEH — PRC enterprise income tax (126) 535
— HugoniE — other overseas taxation (354) 54
BIEASHHF5E Deferred income tax charge, net 1,376 9,038
Fri&Hi & A Income tax expenses 55,209 43,117
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REE

FEFTERERS PP BER M

9 FSBERE) 9 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)
XHEZREH Pillar Two income taxes
AEEBRIE_HAHAFHER - The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules. The
AE BRI PIE R R E Group has applied the mandatory exception to recognising and
BRI —FEHELERNELERIE disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
BEENBENER  UESIEZF]S arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and will account for the
MEARGESARNBARIE = Pillar Two income taxes as current tax when incurred. Pillar
NACEASEELFEE TaERE Two legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted in
REHIBEEEM AR AEELK certain jurisdictions in which the Group operates. However, the
ERENEMAEEREMKEE R enactment or substantial enactment of Pillar Two legislation in
MEREZEH RSB ZME additional jurisdictions in which the Group operates does not
MR el mE Kre - have a material impact to the Group’s overall exposure to Pillar

Two income taxes.

10 BRAER 10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
EREAREEZTRNTIRAR T The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based
= A A AL & 487,223,000 on the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
BT (2024 4 : 388,041,000 % HK$487,223,000 (2024: HK$388,041,000) and the weighted
) R ARBER LB R MNET average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
¥ 811,465,971,429 1% (2024 F : period of 1,465,971,429 shares (2024: 1,465,971,429 shares).
1,465,971,429 %) 5t & -

RE N EFREBEUITNFEETE#H ST There was no potential dilutive ordinary share in existence
BAX ° during both periods.
B2 wasEmmss) sRan /202650 mms
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11 RE

REETTREREZRE DB E R

11 DIVIDEND
Six months ended 30 June
HZ6H30RHILAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
EEIRF R E TR Interim dividend, declared, of HK$0.330

A% 0.330 7% 7T (2024: HK$0.265) per ordinary share

(2024 4F : 0.265%7T) 483,771 388,482

R2025F8 A27THRITHNES S C:H
F ARAESFTIREE2025%6 A
30 B L7 B A MR R B g AR E @A
0.330 7T © &% A% B 1M R AR & 5§
RS ET M BERNRNERAA
& WEEEHZE2025F12 8318 1k
FEMRRER AR -

FRE E2024F 12 A1 B IEEE R
R EARR B 315,184,000 7 7T (2023 4F :
256,545,000 7T) B 722025 F 6 A &
5F o

At the board meeting held on 27 August 2025, the directors
of the Company declared an interim dividend of HK$0.330 per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2025. This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability in the Unaudited
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information, but will
be recognised in shareholders’ equity for the year ending 31
December 2025.

A final dividend of HK$315,184,000 relating to the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: HK$256,545,000) was paid in June
2025.
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12 EXREX 12 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Property,
Intangible plantand Right-of-use Investment
assets  equipment assets  properties Total
ENEE k&t GRAEEE RENE BE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT TET TR TET TR
R2025%1 A1HE Opening net book value
BYREFE at 1 January 2025 359,764 195,902 42,257 136,367 734,290
NE Additions 526 10,577 204 - 11,307
E¥BREER Currency translation differences 1,004 3,873 626 3,231 8,734
e Ry Depreciation and amortisation (5,929) (11,759) (2,851) - (20,539)
RE Disposals - (132) - - (132)
R2025%6 A30 A Closing net book value
HMARREFE at 30 June 2025 355,365 198,461 40,236 139,598 733,660
R2024F1 4188 Opening net book value
R #E at 1 January 2024 106,843 208,363 48,155 145,933 509,294
NE Additions 1,929 2,840 20 - 4,789
KE—ZXMB AT Acquisition of a subsidiary 261,074 142 1,603 - 262,819
EHHEEE Currency translation differences (312) (1,717) (326) (1,276) (3,631)
e REH Depreciation and amortisation (5,916) (9,703) (3,924) - (19,543)
RE Disposals - (143) - - (143)
R2024%6 A30H A Closing net book value
BREEFE at 30 June 2024 363,618 199,782 45,528 144,657 753,585
13 BAREBEEEZEBHEMZMEU 13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
wmo R BE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

BAnBEESEMLE2EEECKEM
BEEZMBEERE TNISA -

INCOME

Financial assets at FVOCI include the following:

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 2024
6H30H 12 H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

REALETHRAES Market value of listed equity securities
A in Hong Kong 113,448 84,772
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BE 14 INVENTORIES
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
6 H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
R+ #k Raw materials 46,598 49,682
&M Work in progress 1,449 803
UK dh Finished goods 189,899 351,249
237,946 401,734
B 5 &k H b B WK 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 fF 2024 F
6 H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
2 5 e WK Trade receivables 868,201 549,133
R ERE Less: provision for impairment (33,854) (25,053)
B 5 rWHFE (K@) Trade receivables, net (note (a)) 834,347 524,080
EWERE FBAR - &S Bills receivable, prepayments, deposits,
ot e Uk 51 % e Uk 8 5 other receivables and amounts due
AT (HBRBERE) from related parties, net of provision for
impairment 987,616 689,191
1,821,963 1,213,271
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TERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

15 E 5 & H b WK () 15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)
MI5E Notes:
@ REZEREHREREENEZESEK (@  The ageing analysis of trade receivables (including amounts due from

R(BEAESHEE N EREEA TR related parties which are trading in nature) based on invoice date and
RERE DTN T : after provision for impairment is as follows:

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 F
6H30H 12A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
HH-90 K Current-90 days 604,979 363,793
91-180&~ 91-180 days 177,269 87,919
180K Over 180 days 52,099 72,368
834,347 524,080

EZ2H MHARERES ESREAM
ERHEERE  ASHHEENRESRA
30RE 120K - BREFBRIRHAILTIN -
AR BERIEZRMAR -

For sale of coatings, marine equipment and spare parts, asphalt and other
products, the majority of sales are on credit terms from 30 days to 120
days. Other than those with credit terms, all invoices are payable upon
presentation.

) EBIZEKFBHREREBRNESHNT : (o)  Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:
Six months ended 30 June
HZE6H30RLLAEA

2025 2024

2025 £ 2024 F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

®W1A1H At 1 January 25,053 54,286

EBBREER Currency translation differences 449 (310)
ERE (BERE) FE Provision/(Reversal of provision) for impairment,

(FFEE6) net (note 6) 8,352 (9,591)

M®6A30H At 30 June 33,854 44,385
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16 SR4IEBITER #1FZFH L 16 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, TOTAL

REERASEEY DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 %F
6 H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
SR IR Restricted bank deposits 5,483 5,399
B EBRIEHE A=A Non-current bank deposits with
LA EWIERBIIRITIE K maturity more than three months
from date of placement 1,032,677 -
BB SRREA A=A Current bank deposits with maturity
LA _E &R B IRTT 17 3K more than three months from date
of placement 2,815,746 1,524,524
BB HRIEAAE=EA Cash deposits with maturity more than
L/( LE!’JIE /i\ Z? ?X three months from date of placement 3,848,423 1,624,524
BERBHEIHEA=@A Current bank deposits with maturity
SA TR RBIIRTTIE K of three months or less from date
of placement 842,350 2,817,440
TR —KRA R B R A Current deposits with a fellow subsidiary
M ENTF R 712,503 698,788
RITRFBERS Cash at bank and on hand 682,751 897,326
RekBes@EY  Cashandcashequvalents 2,237,604 4413554
SRR HRITIFR - BIFHK Restricted bank deposits, total deposits
URBERREEEY and cash and cash equivalents 6,091,510 5,043,477
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16 SR4IEBITER  #1FFH L 16 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS, TOTAL
LEERBEESEEY (F) DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

ZRHRITHER  BEXRUARIEES R Analysis of restricted bank deposits, total deposits and cash
REeZEEBYWHDT and cash equivalents:

30 June 31 December

2025 2024
2025 2024 FF
6 HA30H 12 A 31 H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
IERBIRI TR Non-current bank deposits 1,032,677 -
PR HIER 1T FE R Restricted bank deposits 5,483 5,399
MEBTFRARRE ERE Current deposits and cash and cash
ZEW equivalents 5,053,350 5,938,078
ZREIERITIFR - BIFRK Restricted bank deposits, total deposits
URIRE MIREEEY and cash and cash equivalents 6,091,510 5,943,477
ZBRERITER  BEXKARRE R The carrying amounts of restricted bank deposits, total deposits
ReEFEVNREEN NIEBE: and cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following
currencies:
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
6 H30H 12431 H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
AR Renminbi 795,348 740,929
BT Hong Kong dollars 109,200 182,367
ETT United States dollars 5,096,114 4,927,538
HAth Others 90,848 92,643
6,091,510 5,943,477

B8 +uasEmmzs) aman /2055 hmums



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AEENERRE DA BERIE

17 BRAR 17 SHARE CAPITAL
30 June 2025 31 December 2024
2025%6 B30 H 2024512 A31H
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
RHEE TET RinEE THT
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
R,/ EMREA/EX  Atthe beginning and the end
of the period/year 1,465,971,429 146,597 1,465,971,429 146,597
IR ZHARE Share options
R2020F4 A9H - —TERZ B On 9 April 2020, a share option incentive scheme (the “Share
Bt ([IREHEMEF ) REAR Option Incentive Scheme”) was adopted at the special general
RIREERIA S EEFERN - xR HHE meeting of the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
HEEEE (P aiE) Kl - BF Incentive Scheme is to, inter alia, attract, retain and incentivise
KEBARREREBEABRZLE senior management and key personnel of the Company,
®BET REALQARIAEEKBZN promote the realisation of the long-term strategic targets of
B RARANREZRIEHRE the Company, and serve as the driving force for the long-term
7] e development of the Company.
HARARIER THREREFE R Particulars and movements of the share options granted by the
BT Company during the period are as follows:

Six months ended 30 June 2025
BE2025%6A30HIEAMEA

Number of share options
REDEHE

Outstanding Outstanding

as at Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled as at

Exercisable Exercise 1January duringthe duringthe duringthe during the 30 June

Date of grant year price 2025 period period period period 2025

R2025%F #2025 %

1A1H RER RER RER RER  6A30H

&¥H TTEER EfE RN 3 &y i P d¥  HARTE

28 April 2020 Note (a), (d) HK$2.26 6,663,300 - - - - 6,663,300
2020F4R288 M@ () 2.2687C

6 October 2020 Note (b), (d) HK$2.184 701,400 - - - - 701,400

2020610A6H  ME (D) () 218487

7 April 2021 Note (c), (d) HK$2.72 913,790 - - (456,210) - 457,580
221F4R78  WHEEQ: @ 2728

8,278,490 - - (456,210) - 7,822,280
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17 R4 (&)

60 -zs=EamEs amRan

B

(@ R2020F4H28H AR RIRIERZH
ERETE M EEEREARRERER
A& E B B & T 4 $£23,830,000 13 B 2
- TEEAEER2268 T URE
A A% AR R A $£23,830,000 A% & B
E0.10 B TTHI AR 1D ©

(b) M2020F1086H @ AR RIRIEKRZH
B E RS REEBAEBEERT
4 #£2,460,0000 R EHH#E  THEERE
(8218487 - URBAABRAFE H
2,460,000 i Z A EE0.10 BT AR (D ©

(© M2021FE4A878 @ AARIRIERZEHE
HEAE RSB ERAEEERR T
4 #£1,370,000 0 R EHHE  THEERE
fR2.72%8 T URBRBARQ BB AT A K
1,370,000 & F A EIfE 0.107B oI AR5 ©

o) REREHELDE  TEZHERE
HEZ DN ASERF ZFROFNE
BHR  HE2EESETRERT
MEMKRRBE - SHBHERER 2
HEASFEHBETRRAFE=F
ENFRERFH=PITERTIARE -

2025%6 A30H © AAQ A M AKTT
5 &) I% = Bi 4 57,822,280 15 (2024
F£12 A31H :8,278,4901)) » H
7,822,2801 (2024412 A31 8 :
7,820,91017) 1A AR 17 {5 &9 A% 32 B /&8
BB Aim I XREHENTT
FERGFHRRE  METTENRE
HifE - AR AW EEATERHETEEEMN
BeEE s EREEE -

HAR - BEAE AR = B R 1T (3 ok 7 8
(20245 A 8 : &) - ™ 456,210
(2024 % [F H : 7,099,56017) I = HA
AR E BT &8I 2 R -

17 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 28 April 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 23,830,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$2.26 per share to 71 eligible
directors of the Company and employees of the Group to subscribe for a
total of 23,830,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
under the Share Option Incentive Scheme.

(b) On 6 October 2020, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,460,000
share options at an exercise price of HK$2.184 per share to 8 eligible
employees of the Group to subscribe for a total of 2,460,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company under the Share Option
Incentive Scheme.

(©) On 7 April 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of 1,370,000 share
options at an exercise price of HK$2.72 per share to 5 eligible employees
of the Group to subscribe for a total of 1,370,000 shares of HK$0.10
each in the capital of the Company under the Share Option Incentive
Scheme.

(d) Under the Share Option Incentive Scheme, the exercises of the share
options of three batches are subject to two-year, three-year and four-
year vesting periods respectively during which participant is not allowed
to exercise any share option granted. After the expiration of each of the
vesting periods, the participant may exercise the share options in three
batches commencing from the third, fourth and fifth year after the relevant
dates of grant.

As at 30 June 2025, 7,822,280 share options of the Company
were outstanding (as at 31 December 2024: 8,278,490 share
options), of which 7,822,280 outstanding share options were
vested (as at 31 December 2024: 7,820,910 share options).
However, the conditions of exercise of the particular batch
of the share options were not fulfilled, no outstanding share
options were exercisable. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share options
in cash.

During the period, no share option was exercised or cancelled
(for the same period of 2024: nil), whereas 456,210 share
options were lapsed (for the same period of 2024: 7,099,560
share options) under the Share Option Incentive Scheme.
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18 EFREMENSR - 848 18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES,

EREEAE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND LEASE
LIABILITIES
30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
6 H30H 12H31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
B SRR () Trade payables (note (a)) 620,609 494,836
ANES S = Bills payable, accrued liabilities, other
H b e R R FE A payables and amounts due to related
BEAN TR parties 452,841 312,536
1,073,450 807,372
= ON=R Contract liabilities 233,501 203,303
HMEBE (M) Lease liabilities (note (c)) 14,721 15,603
1,321,672 1,026,278
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18 EZRHEMENR EHE
EREESE (A)

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES,
CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

B eE Notes:

@ BRERANEZIENX(BERESMLE (a)
H S BRSE A £ 50) MBRER D AT A0 T

The ageing analysis of trade payables (including amounts due to related
parties which are trading in nature) based on invoice date is as follows:

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

2025 £ 2024 F

6 A30H 12H31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

& HI-90K Current-90 days 496,458 423,110

91-180 K 91-180 days 70,329 40,441

@180k Over 180 days 53,822 31,285

620,609 494,836

() BERAEHNEEBBRAREHABER ()  Revenue recognised in the current reporting period related to brought-

B A - forward contract liabilities:

Six months ended 30 June

BZ6H30RALAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HEMA DB EESPHEROUA  Revenue recognised that was included in the

contract liabilities balance at the beginning of

the period 143,625 162,994
© THEEEMNIHASTHT (©)  Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as below:

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 £ 2024 F
6H30H 12 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
—FRN Within one year 5,027 3,795
F_FEERF(RREERMT) From the second to fifth year inclusive 9,694 11,808
14,721 15,603

B2 +zsEEmEs ERAT
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19 EAREFH

(@) ANEBEEARFEZHERFGENAT :

REETTREREZRE DB E R

19 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

(@ The Group had capital commitments for capital
expenditure as follows:

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

2025 F 2024 F

6 H30H 12 A31H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

B ET A MR IR Contracted but not provided 6,136 6,215

b) AEEEE-RAZLFEEHE
TEEEREMNENEAGRNT

(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of a joint
venture in respect of fixed assets investment is as follows:

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

2025 % 2024 F

6 H30H 12431 H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHBT

BRI 4R IR Contracted but not provided 3,408 4,292

20 FAE&RE

REER L RIEFURZENTT
BERHEE  RREEHeIHE
%8 417,651,000 7T (2024 & 12 A 31
H : 25,633,000/87T) °

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD. /

20 LEASE COMMITMENTS

The aggregate future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable short-term leases in respect of land and buildings
and equipment are HK$17,651,000 (31 December 2024:
HK$25,633,000).
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REE

21

64 -:zsEamEs aRaT

FEFTERERS PP BER M

EXBEALRS

AEBAREBEMK IO IREGE
(BE)BRAR([BEAREREE]) E
#il - MBS EREGER2025F6 A30
BHBEARBHT1.70% KD - AR
A 88 T 4728.30% % 10 Bl F8 % 8 H A
ALTHE - BEFRRBENRRITER
NE|BFIRGE -

TEBER—RBAELE ABEAT
BB D A E B EN T BEBAKL R
2 o RIBFB GFHERF 245 (&
) PREBRNERERBZEES - X
RIZEHISHEBEERAZENRTHEA
ERLAEMBRARKAERSAEER
BAT B BEALTBETRSE
B HMB AR (FRAKESN) KitE
AR~ i BT B & SR & A
HEALXLENBRR - ARA
NREAEEFRITEERFENNE
MEEREXERARRNPEREEN
TZEBABREETHREKE °

RHEEATRZRENENME &

RRE BN BRRERE R -
EREEREERABDZEERFZ
BEALRD  BARAETREXSE
A HARTBEKR BERNEES
AHERIE 24 5% (RERT) MK EE - &
EHEEHEEALIRZ ZEHERAR
B EASRA T HMBEERPIEL T

BB -

BT D RBFHEEEENR S KR
AEEAEREETHIHEN ST
FHIMBEEALERI AT REA
AEEELEFRGEFTEETEKR
BEALIRZZHE :

21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited (“COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong)”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which owns approximately 71.70%
of the Company’s shares as at 30 June 2025. The remaining
approximately 28.30% of the Company’s shares is widely held.
The ultimate holding company of COSCO SHIPPING (Hong
Kong) is COSCO SHIPPING.

COSCO SHIPPING itself is a state-owned enterprise
established and controlled by the PRC government which also
owns a significant portion of the productive assets in the PRC.
In accordance with HKAS 24 (Revised), government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC
government are defined as related parties of the Group. On that
basis, related parties include COSCO SHIPPING, its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) and associates, other state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries directly or indirectly controlled
by the PRC government, and other entities and corporations
in which the Company is able to control or exercise significant
influence and key management personnel of the Company and
COSCO SHIPPING as well as their close family members.

For the purpose of the related party transaction disclosures,
the directors believe that it is meaningful to disclose the related
party transactions with group companies of the ultimate holding
company for the interests of financial statements’ users,
although certain of those transactions which are individually or
collectively not significant, and are exempted from disclosure
upon adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised). The directors believe
that the information of related party transactions has been
adequately disclosed in the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Information.

Apart from the above-mentioned transactions with the
government-related entities and the related party information
shown elsewhere in the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Information, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions carried out in the normal
course of the Group’s business during the period:
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21 EXRBEALRZ (&) 21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ MERRDE - RRFEBR
8] ~ 1HE A B R HE AR E
ATHEE mKREERE

(@) Sale of goods and provision of services
to holding companies, fellow subsidiaries,
related companies and other related parties

Six months ended 30 June

BZE6H30RIEA@EA
2025 2024
2025 % 2024 &
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt 5T FET FHET
HEZR T Sale of coatings to:
— RAEWBE AT — fellow subsidiaries (), (ix) 459,897 213,029
— R A] — related companies (), (%) 2,207 1,925
— FERE M A — non-controlling interests [0} 2,503 2,313
— —XEeEDE — ajoint venture () 9,616 8,566
HEMMEER Sale of marine equipment and
HwHT spare parts to: (i), (ix)
— RRKE AT — fellow subsidiaries 606,004 680,878
— HE XA — related companies 17,006 33,459
— ELHE — joint ventures 364 5,508
— —KEE QA — an associate 79 -
M TN ABRREMAM  Commission income in relation
2S5 RERBED to the provision of ship trading
el : agency services to: (iil), (ix)
— ARWNERF] — fellow subsidiaries 37,312 29,513
— —RKABEEXE — ajoint venture - 4,993
MU TRARREIRE  Commission income in relation
BERERENEE to the provision of insurance
e brokerage services to: (iv), (ix)
— RRKE AT — fellow subsidiaries 70,060 60,858
— R A] — related companies 1,049 1,069
— ERAR] — holding companies 608 763
SHE M AR Y K Sale of ship supplies and other
HMEMT products to: (), (ix)
L ENS — fellow subsidiaries 6 41

COSCO SHIPPING INTERNATIONAL (HONG KONG) CO., LTD.
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21 EXBEALRS (H)

(@ MERRDE - RRHEBR
8] - HHE A B R H AR E
AT SHEE m &R AR

21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Sale of goods and provision of services
to holding companies, fellow subsidiaries,
related companies and other related parties

(4&) (Continued)
Six months ended 30 June
BZEZ6H30RLEAEA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024 F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FHERT FHET
M N RARIIRMELE  Service fee income in relation to the
BB LfERTTZE  provision of green, low-carbon
B AR %5 & W o and digital intelligent solutions to:  (vi), (i)
— RARKE QA — fellow subsidiaries 353 93
— BEhE — joint ventures - 42
— —XKEE QA — an associate 10 -
M TNARIRMEEIE  Management fee income in relation
FRGH BB to the provision of management
services to: (vii), (i)
— RRKE AT — fellow subsidiaries 10,356 9,451
— —KERAA] — a holding company 31,921 26,805
BE—RERKE Interest income from a fellow
NG ORI FSRE € subsidiary (viil), (i) 2,847 5,226

OO -uzsEamEH ARAT / 2025FHEHE
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21 EXRBEEALRS (&)

(@)

N

b TN CEST P
= BN AR bEE
é%%%%ﬁ&ﬁ1%%

i

0} mFEZMERR - BEERQR - FEE
PEEDEE KL REHER
B HERRERER SN M
PIT B0 B (R RAE 7T

(if) RRZRANEB AR - HEA A -
TrER— %W““T%%ﬁ
BERES HEBEABTHER
B 10 5 P 8 B R FE AT ©

%u>
So &S

(iif ﬁ@ai%%%%@aﬁ&@%
MEARR —REELERE@E
BT & FME: b)BEME
% R)FiEMIEE MMM
HBEEsREA-REEBZE
B/ & haEngR  AEEHE
MXFAER MRRZEEE
77 U B & e s o ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé

15532 5 00 16p 5 P MO 6 RET &

vy MmRERKBRR HERRRE
B~ AR R R B R RIS 2 B &
g BIRBRELERZHH
EPTH A ERETE -

v MRRMBXEHEEMMEEYD
REMER HSEBAEHER
5 B 9 5 T R O MR SR AT ©

M) PRRKEAT ABREE—
REEAARESEEREE (L
B o B B 0
BB E X 50 2% R A R R
#17 -

Vi) BEREBWRZFEARRRKERR
E—RERARRHEEERE -
HARBHELZERINHEME
BORFRHETT ©

(i) FI B EIR B F RN — KR
BARMASHERRARITH S
T RGHHE -

i ZEXRFAEFEHERS UF
A LEMBABAAZTNEBERTE °

REETTREREZRE DB E R

21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Sale of goods and provision of services
to holding companies, fellow subsidiaries,
related companies and other related parties
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Sale of coatings to fellow subsidiaries, related companies, non-
controlling interests and a joint venture was conducted on terms
as set out in the agreements governing these transactions.

(i) Sale of marine equipment and spare parts to fellow subsidiaries,
related companies, joint ventures and an associate was
conducted on terms as set out in the agreements governing these
transactions.

(i) Certain subsidiaries of the Company acted as agents of
fellow subsidiaries and a joint venture relating to (a) sale and
purchase of new and second hand vessels; (b) bareboat charter
businesses; and (c) sale and purchase of marine equipment for
new shipbuilding projects. According to the terms of the relevant
engagement/commission agreements, the Group received
commission income from vendors, ship-owners and equipment
makers with respect to the transactions mentioned above. The
commissions were charged based on terms as set out in the
agreements governing these transactions.

(iv) Commission income in relation to the provision of insurance
brokerage services to fellow subsidiaries, related companies and
holding companies was calculated on terms as set out in the
agreements governing these transactions.

) Sale of ship supplies and other products to fellow subsidiaries was
conducted on terms as set out in the agreements governing these
transactions.

(vi) Service fee income in relation to the provision of green, low-carbon
and digital solutions to fellow subsidiaries, joint ventures and an
associate was conducted on terms as set out in the agreements
governing these transactions.

(vii) Management fee income is derived from provision of management
services to fellow subsidiaries and a holding company and was
conducted on terms as set out in the agreements governing these
transactions.

(vii)  Interest income was received from cash deposits placed with a
fellow subsidiary and was calculated at prevailing market rates.

(ix) The transactions represent continuing connected transactions
which has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(b)

21 EXHEEALRZ (8) 21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
CEAMNEB AR - HERQ (b) Purchase of goods and services from fellow
FMEMBEEATHBESER subsidiaries, related companies and other
X AR 7% related parties

B8 -uzsEmmEs aRa

Six months ended 30 June

HZ6H30HIEAREA
2025 2024
2025 F 2024
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET

FACIES )Nk i
HtwMEFHE
B HAR R
HEER

SLIHEZR X RE
ERTRANE
NG

SLIHEMMRE N
BEER TR
GE|E NG

FATALTEER
Mt

— —RRARXMEB AT

— JRIEf R
— —RAZDEE
[ — R [F R B A A

EEMMAET
RIESGI=PNEIFER
EREH
(7] S 42 i) 14 4 2 S A
i e A &
RIFESGI=PNSIFEs)
R &

Expenses related to short-term

leases to fellow subsidiaries in

relation to lease contracts for

land and buildings i), (ix) 19,553 14,376
Commission expenses in relation

to the sale of coatings paid to

fellow subsidiaries (i), (ix) 13,281 3,483
Commission expenses in relation

to the sale of marine equipment

paid to a related company (iii), (ix) 1,657 4,694
Purchase of raw materials from:

— a fellow subsidiary (iv), (ix) 88 -

— non-controlling interests (iv) - 1,706

— ajoint venture (iv) 5,411 10,833
Purchase of marine spare parts

from a fellow subsidiary (v), (ix) 1,681 4,448
Transportation costs paid to

fellow subsidiaries (vi), (ix) 1,290 1,220
Technology usage fee paid to

non-controlling interests (vii) 917 860
Service fees paid to fellow

subsidiaries (viii), (ix) 10,975 10,033

/2025 FHHEIERE



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
mERH

NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

21 EXRBEEALRS (&)

(b)

RERNKELR  HER
REMBEALBEER
K BR#%5 (%)

Wi

() AEBRRRZMNBARERARE
BEoRBEREMEBIIEROE T
WAEREHMME  HERBRE
I E R 5 K 1k A8 RO IR AT o

(ii) MERHERA XM AE HIER
RE I F R 5 K1 & BT 88 15K
TR EHEENETEDLETE -

iy —HKEBERREEZEAREA
MEBETHEEMMRERE
RERE  ARAEEDEE M
MR Ae iR R%AE A
NRFENHEESE TAE LA E -

vy M—RERHKBRA - IEEHE
BEk—REEREBERME
DRBHEHREZIOHEMH
B IETRHETT ©

v M-—XERMABIFRBEMME
o DIRBIRE W ER 50 #
PITEB0 E (SRTRE 7T

V) MERMBARIXNEHER-
TR R E LB R 5 80 1 % Fr K
AR TRAETT -

(i) IFEHIEEE X MR EAE
TR R E L B 22 5 00 7 3 T 8
MR EHEFENETH
DHEHE

Vi) MRARMBABRZNNREE
TEEmAEBERETERRS
ANER BB RE 8
SEREAEESZHRAEHE -
WEBHEENRERZOBEME
R FRIETT ©

REXRDABEBRERS  AUF

(ix) e
B LETRAE4AZENHEBERT -

REETTREREZRE DB E R

21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Purchase of goods and services from fellow
subsidiaries, related companies and other
related parties (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group leased certain office premises and other properties in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas countries from fellow
subsidiaries on terms as set out in the agreements governing these
transactions.

(i) Commission paid to fellow subsidiaries was based on a certain
percentage of sales amounts in accordance with terms as set out
in the agreements governing these transactions.

(iii) A related company was appointed as agent to provide agency
services in relation to the sale of marine equipment in the PRC
and purchase of marine equipment from suppliers. Commission
paid was based on a certain percentage of sales procured by the
related company.

(iv) Purchase of raw materials from a fellow subsidiary, non-controlling
interests and a joint venture was conducted on terms as set out in
the agreements governing these transactions.

) Purchase of marine spare parts from a fellow subsidiary was
conducted on terms as set out in the agreements governing these
transactions.

(Vi) Transportation costs paid to fellow subsidiaries were based on
terms as set out in the agreements governing these transactions.

(vil  Technology usage fee paid to non-controlling interests was
made based on a certain percentage of the net sales amount in
accordance with terms as set out in the agreements governing
these transactions.

(viii)  Service fees were paid to fellow subsidiaries in relation to their
provision of administrative services, manpower resources,
technical support and other ancillary support to the Group and
sharing of office premises by the Group and were conducted on
terms as set out in the agreements governing these transactions.

(ix) The transactions represent continuing connected transactions
which has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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21 EXBEALRS (H)

c) TEEEAEMS

21 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

() Key management personnel compensation

Six months ended 30 June

BZE6H30RIEAEA
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FERT FHET
e MEAE R Salaries and other short-term benefits 3,643 3,340

) EHERMESRERS
bR £t % B B A B
ONSICESG) PR
D AR AR A £

Y RAB S 45 &R

services, and other activities

(d) Outstanding balances with holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries, related
companies and other related parties arising
from sale and purchase of goods and

30 June 31 December
2025 2024
2025 2024 F
6 H30H 12 A31H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
R EN = VNCIEA Receivables from fellow subsidiaries 721,884 251,836
FEUARRE A &) 5k Receivables from related companies 54,124 37,812
A EER Receivables from joint ventures 5,225 5,623
JE U — Bt A Bl K Receivables from an associate - 89
JRE UK FE 428 6] M R K Receivables from non-controlling
interests 928 737
JERT B HEER A AR Payables to immediate holding
company (848) (10,797)
ERRZREKEARRR Payables to fellow subsidiaries (438,471) (181,710)
AR VNGIEN Payables to related companies (15,183) (20,820)
EREEER Payables to joint ventures (10,259) (9,832)
A — K E R RIR Payables to an associate (914) -
JE A~ FE 2 1 M FE 2 K Payables to non-controlling interests - (4,069)

T0 +uzszmpEsarad
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REEN B E S miER%
LA R EL At 0% B fir 2 A B 42
BRAB - BARAMEBLA -
ML REMBAEAL
Ry AR B SR ()

FHEBEEATOEHRBER
2B REBRTEERY R
BEEAEEGRMEENHERE
SREB R RIRERID -

I GSSECEA) I
177 2k

21

REETTREREZRE DB E R

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries, related
companies and other related parties arising
from sale and purchase of goods and
services, and other activities (Continued)

The above balances with related parties were unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment except
for trade related balances and bills receivables/payables
which were repayable according to the respective credit
term.

(e) Deposits placed with a fellow subsidiary

30 June 31 December

2025 2024

2025 2024 F

6H30H 12 A31H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

& Current 712,503 698,788

IR — KR R B 2 A (A i
TR BEE) WFERIARTT
MIHHRELE

Deposits placed with a fellow subsidiary, which is a
financial institution in the PRC, bear interest at prevailing
market rates.
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HthE#H

IR R

SHARE OPTIONS

ANAR I EEARE BN AT 87020204 A9 The Company’s share option incentive scheme has been adopted by
HRRERRIAS FERRRRMA ([IZEH  the Shareholders at the special general meeting on 9 April 2020 (the

AR ETE]) °

“Share Option Incentive Scheme”).

R2025F1 A1 HE2025%6 A30H IEH]  Details of the movements of the share options granted under the
M(TEA]) - BIERZEE SBT3 F  Share Option Incentive Scheme during the period from 1 January

ZIREHEEBFIEAT 2025 to 30 June 2025 (the “Period”) are set out below:
Approximate
percentage of
Outstanding Category Outstanding  total number
Exercise asat Granted changed Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled asat of issued
price 1 January during during during during during Date of 30June  Shares as at Exercise
Category (HKS) 2025  thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  thePeriod  the Period grant 2025 30 June 2025 period  Notes
152025 F
64308
R2025% R20255 BERITRH
@ 1818 R#R Rk RER RER Rk 6A30R AHNEN
3 (&7 R AT B  EXER Eix:d b3 Gt BFH W RAT B BAlt ] Bt
Ex-Director
HEES
Ms. Meng Xin* 2.26 156,980 - (156,980) - - - 28/4/2020 - - 28/42024-  1,4,6
AL 27/4/2026
156,980 - (156,980) - - - -
Continuous contract 226 6,506,320 - 156,980 - - - 28/4/2020 6,663,300 045%  28/4/2024-  1,4,6
employees and others 27/4/2026
BEANEERAM
2.184 701,400 - - - - - 6102020 701,400 0.047%  6/10/2024-  2,4,6
5/10/2026
2.12 456,210 - - - (456,210) - /412021 - - 7/42024- 34,56
6/4/2025
212 457,580 - - - - - /412021 457,580 003%  7/4/2025- 3,46
6/4/2027
8,278,490 - - - (456,210) - 7,822,280

* BT L LR 202551 B4 BB ERITES -

T2 wuzsEmmss) spad

* Ms. Meng Xin resigned as Executive Director on 24 January 2025.
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PR 22 A4 T AR 15 IR 3 HA M BN AT 81 2020 FF 4
A28 BULAITHEESRR2268 TR T - FHER
BIREER®E REPESES ORI
RIEDHEE - B (a) 33.3% I Z HIRER 2022 £
4288 57 & : (b) 33.3% % 2= H ## 74 2023 F 4
F28H B : (c) 33.4% I ZHi#E /2 2024 FF 4 A
28R HE °

[I% 32 HA 4 70 AR B A% 32 B SUED 51 &7 2020 4F 10
B6RUNUITHEEER2.184B TE T - FHMER
BIEHERRE  BREHRBEESENRGIBE
REDHEEE » B (a) 33.3% % Z Hi#ER 2022 £
10 A6 HRE : (b) 33.3% IR Z HAHER 2023 4 10
A6HEE : (c) 33.4% X ZEH M 2024 F 10 A
6ANE

iR 22 HA A 75 AR 9% AR 22 BR AR Eh AT &1 R 2021 F 4
A7EBRITEESR22BTET HFHER
BistERE  REHRBESENRGIEE
REDHEEE » B (a) 33.3% 1% = H#E R 2023
AR7HEE : (b) 33.3% REHAEN 2024 F 4 A
7THHE () 38.4%REHEN2025F4A7H
5RIE o

RIBRFEAERE S ZFRRAESEKX
MG RADHTR  MEIRRAEAE
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The share options were granted on 28 April 2020 under the Share Option
Incentive Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.26 per Share. Subject to the
fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions, share options will be vested in
batches after the expiry of the respective restriction periods, i.e. (a) 33.3% of
the share options be vested on 28 April 2022; (b) 33.3% of the share options be
vested on 28 April 2023; (c) 33.4% of the share options be vested on 28 April
2024.

The share options were granted on 6 October 2020 under the Share Option
Incentive Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.184 per Share. Subject to the
fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions, share options will be vested in
batches after the expiry of the respective restriction periods, i.e. (a) 33.3% of
the share options be vested on 6 October 2022; (b) 33.3% of the share options
be vested on 6 October 2023; (c) 33.4% of the share options be vested on 6
October 2024.

The share options were granted on 7 April 2021 under the Share Option Incentive
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.72 per Share. Subject to the fulfilment of
the relevant vesting conditions, share options will be vested in batches after the
expiry of the respective restriction periods, i.e. (a) 33.3% of the share options
be vested on 7 April 2023; (b) 33.3% of the share options be vested on 7 April
2024; (c) 33.4% of the share options be vested on 7 April 2025.

Pursuant to the Share Option Incentive Scheme, these share options are
exercisable subject to the fulfilment of the relevant conditions in batches and
each batch of such share options is exercisable within the periods stated as
follows: (a) 33.3% of the share options will be exercisable commencing on
the first trading day after the expiration of the 24-month period (the second
anniversary) from the respective dates of grant and ending on the last trading
day of the 36-month period from the respective dates of grant; (b) 33.3% of
the share options will be exercisable commencing on the first trading day after
the expiration of the 36-month period (the third anniversary) from the respective
dates of grant and ending on the last trading day of the 48-month period
from the respective dates of grant; and (c) 33.4% of the share options will be
exercisable commencing on the first trading day after the expiration of the
48-month period (the fourth anniversary) from the respective dates of grant and
ending on the last trading day of the 72-month period from the respective dates
of grant.

The lapsed share options resulted from the expiry of exercise period.

These share options represent personal interests held by the participant(s) as
beneficial owner(s).

During the Period, no share options were exercised under the Share Option
Incentive Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no share options lapsed or were cancelled under the
Share Option Incentive Scheme during the Period.
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9 ERTHOREPELAABERIZEXNAZEEE 9 The fair values of the share options granted are estimated based on the Binomial
B HE  EEAABAERZEANETERY Option Pricing Model, and such fair values and significant inputs into the model
U are as follows:

Standard
Fair value deviation of Expected
of share Share price at Exercise expected Expected dividend
options  date of grant price share price life of share payout Risk-free
(HKS) (HKS) (HK9) return options ratio interest rate
RHEN  RETEN
AAEE R 43 B fTEE BERE BHRER it
(Bx) (B7x) (Br) EHEEE HEEH RKEE EERAE
Share options granted on 28 April 2020 4,372,286 2.26 226  21.0%-23.2% 3-6 years 55% 0.38%-0.41%
20205 4 A28 AT 2 RE M 3-6%F
Share options granted on 6 October 2020 472,891 2.18 2.184  22.3%-24.2% 3-6 years 55% 0.19%-0.28%
2020610 A6 AR T2 RRHHE 3-6%F
Share options granted on 7 April 2021 298,722 2.72 272 22.5%-24.6% 3-6 years 6.65% 0.34%-0.89%
P01 4 A7 AR T REHE 3-6%F
FEHIRERRZEZMN LR IZBAERE T A The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price return
ZRIADNRINBAREZSDNE - THLER is based on the historical share price movement of the Company prior to the
B2EHEHAABENGHAIREEATLE - relevant date of grant. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
AEEREESBHREGERERAERRE materially affect the fair value estimation. The Group recognises the fair value
HEz2ARBEARAZ REHEZAAEE of share options as expenses in the consolidated income statement over the
NI TFHEE - vesting periods. The fair value of the share options is measured at the date of
grant.

10 ROHKEEE2020F4H28H 2020510756 H 10 The closing prices of the Share(s) immediately before the dates on which the
K2021F4A7TARESHER T A —ROHUK share options were granted on 28 April 2020, 6 October 2020 and 7 April 2021
TMED R A2.268 T 2188 L k2698 TT - were HK$2.26, HK$2.18 and HK$2.69 respectively.

11 HZE2025F6A30HIEAEA (RIFEHMEE 11 Throughout the six months ended 30 June 2025 (including the beginning and the
R BERBREHELEEE—PERTE end of the Period), there were no further share options available for grant under
fA] A% 3= R 4 o the Share Option Incentive Scheme.

12 REY BERZHESBAETETORG 12 As at the beginning of the Period, the total number of shares which may be
B2 58,278,400k H (RIENHVIE EB K issued under the Share Option Incentive Scheme was 8,278,490 Shares
7,820,910 R IR MR BRIV R 55 8 - WA EA X (including 7,820,910 Shares which were vested at the beginning of the Period
ABEFBM457580RRM) - (HHANE TR and 457,580 Shares which were unvested at the beginning of the Period and
B E INAE I E40.56%  Hp - BIRRA 1T became vested during the Period), representing approximately 0.56% of the
B JE o T 2k R0 AR SR B4 /5 466,210 19 + R IR Al weighted average number of the Shares in issue during the Period. Among
TR IR Z B 5 7,822,28010 ' D REHIRE them, 456,210 share options lapsed due to the expiry of exercise period during
FEITHR (0 B hn#E - 9 £0490.03% K. 0.53% © the Period and 7,822,280 share options would be exercisable in the future,

representing approximately 0.03% and 0.53% of the weighted average number
of the Shares in issue during the Period, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2025, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Director was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

1. Long positions in the underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company

Details are set out in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above.
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RBESEB R NEF R

Long positions in the shares of associated
corporation

Approximate

Total number  percentage of
of ordinary the relevant
shares of  class of total

associated  issued shares

Name of associated Nature of corporation  of associated

Name of Director corporation Capacity interest held corporation

kR

HRER

FERELEE ERTROEH

Exps HEEE SR L) BHME LTERAY WHNESH

Mr. Kwong Che Keung,  COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited Beneficial owner  Personal 250,000 0.0075%

Gordon

HREE RERGEBOBRAA EafiA A f&A

BREXRIERE] —HAREE
SN R2025F6 A30H - B E E K
ARRRBITERABRARBHEE
kAR (EE R ES LT EM)
BR D - IRBAR D REST - HA ()
REZSMBEGROIFEXVEET 28
D BB A E AN F BP0 (R AT 4
BIRE (BREREZSF LB KM
MABARIGX  EFRERUEFRESR
MR IORR) L) RIEEH LB
B 1RPIE 362G AZ RN & IRFTIEE
O ERERSORR ¢ (o) IRIEIR
57 RIZR S AN A7) N Bt 52 B e AE AR
RmBIKA o

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “SHARE
OPTIONS”, neither the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which
(a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which the Director was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange as at 30 June 2025.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2025, the following persons and entities, other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Approximate

Total number of percentage of

ordinary shares of  total number of

the Company held issued shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity Nature of interest (Long Positions)  of the Company

FEARTE A RACERST
EERAR R BEH

RREW a4 Rty (#8) BHAES
COSCO SHIPPING Interest of controlled  Corporate interest 1,051,183,486 71.70%
corporation
FiREE RGN RS DA
China Shipping Group Company Limited* Interest of controlled ~ Corporate interest 1,051,183,486 71.70%
(“China Shipping”) corporation
FEGESEERAR ((FEEE]) XN AR NEER
COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong) Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 1,051,183,486 71.70%
BRPEREE BEanEAA Ban
5k - Note:

BBERREGENARNRT1,051,183,486 R R HEE
X - AR BB REBATRHEENZENEL
A MABREEATREENZEWNERR  RBRIEF
FREBERD  BEEPRGENRIWEIEREGE
iR - MPESENERRREPRENER -

Br EXXCHEES  R2025F6A30H * K
ARTEEETMNALTRERRNE S
BAR SN IRIEE F K& B & 1§15 55 336 &
FEMNZRMAOARRRRG REERG

HER AR -

COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong) had beneficial interests in 1,051,183,486 shares of the
Company. Since COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Shipping which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of COSCO SHIPPING, the interests
of COSCO SHIPPING (Hong Kong) are deemed to be the interests of China Shipping
and in turn the interests of China Shipping are deemed to be the interests of COSCO
SHIPPING under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, the Company had not
been notified by any person or entity who had interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

* for identification purposes only
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REE202546 A30H IEANAAR » AR
AIREAWMBARMERE  LENE
BIARRBER ETHESR - ARAWEFE
EAEFRG -

B FMEAFEI351BNE  BAFHERN

EEERBELT -

BITES ESLIRFREFTHLERSE
FREMR2025F5 A0 B BARRIGFIZE
FEEE THBE2025F5 308K &
ERRQNF227TFRRBAFASERAIL -
P EFEETREN—FHL T EAN
EAEMBANREFRENEMERERM

FRITEZTREML T N2025F7 A%
& A AR AR R KM B A 7 Piracsus Port
Authority SA. (R HEH ) IEBITES o
BEAN - BB FEENTT E S B A 5R L A 7R 2025
%7 AR EPiraeus Port Authority S.A. (R
M) B IERITES o

18 +uszmpEsarca

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the
six months ended 30 June 2025. The Company did not hold any
treasury shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS

Changes in the Director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr. Zhu Changyu, the Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board
and the Managing Director, has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company on 30 May 2025 for a term commencing from 30
May 2025 to the conclusion of the 2027 annual general meeting of
the Company. The above-mentioned letter of appointment is subject
to termination by either party giving one month’s prior notice in
writing or such other shorter notice period as may be agreed by both
parties.

Ms. Zhang Xueyan, the Non-executive Director, was appointed as
the non-executive director of Piraeus Port Authority S.A. (listed in
Athens), a fellow subsidiary of the Company, in July 2025. Moreover,
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, the Independent Non-executive
Director, retired as the independent non-executive director of Piraeus
Port Authority S.A. (listed in Athens) in July 2025.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Maintaining high standards of corporate governance has always been
one of the Company’s priorities. This is achieved through an effective,
timely disclosure of information by the Board and a proactive investor
relations programme. The Company will continue to implement
measures in order to further strengthen its corporate governance and
overall risk management.

The Board believed that the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules during the six months ended
30 June 2025, except that (A) Ms. Zhang Xueyan, the Non-executive
Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2025 (the “AGM”) due to other business
engagement, which deviated from the code provision C.1.6 of the
CG Code; and (B) the roles of the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director are currently performed by the same individual,
Mr. Zhu Changyu, which deviated from the code provision C.2.1
of the CG Code. Despite the absence of Ms. Zhang Xueyan at the
AGM, those Board members participated at the AGM were available
to answer questions from the Shareholders to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders. Although the roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director are performed by
the same individual, the Board believes that the roles of the Chairman
of the Board and the Managing Director being performed by the
same individual will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company, given that:
(i) all the Directors are aware of and undertake to fulfil their fiduciary
duties as Directors, which require, among others, that he/she acts
for the benefit and in the best interests of the Company; (ii) the
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operations of the
Board; and (iii) the overall strategy and other key business, financial
and operational policies of the Company are made collectively after
thorough discussion at both the Board and senior management of
the Company. Save as mentioned above, there is no other matter
deviated from the CG Code. The Company aims to continually review
and enhance its corporate governance practices in light of best
practices.
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The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is
comprised of three Independent Non-executive Directors and the
chairman of which is a certified public accountant. The main duties
of the Audit Committee include reviewing the accounting policies
and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting; monitoring the
performance of both the internal and external auditors; reviewing
and examining the effectiveness of the financial reporting, the risk
management and internal control systems; ensuring compliance with
applicable statutory accounting and reporting requirements. The Audit
Committee has discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with management of the Company. The independent external
auditor has reviewed the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Interim
Financial Information in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim Financial Information
Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated
Interim Financial Information and the 2025 interim report of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions of Directors and employees (the “Securities Code”)
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code. In order to ensure the Directors’ dealings in the securities of
the Company are conducted in accordance with the Model Code
and the Securities Code, a committee was set up to deal with
such transactions. The Company has made specific enquiries of all
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code and
the Securities Code during the six months ended 30 June 2025,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Securities Code during
the Period.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Changyu
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 August 2025
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